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MISSION zx=xmEs

To inspire and enrich life by bringing our customers to the world beyond imagination through excellent movie
experience, while seeking maximization of shareholders’ value.

ERRMBEFACAORBREETRRHNEY  RERBENETRENER  BHRRERS  MEEX FFELE -

VISION zx=xweE=

To become Asia’s largest integrator of the movie entertainment industry

RAEMNEANEYEXEESE

VALUE zx=xm@E@E

Responsible
for the maximization of shareholders’ value and the betterment
of society with the highest principles

Innovative
offerings to our customers with continual improvement

HBRRE ERBESAULBARNEEERE HEEREEAREAE

Effective Honest

execution of business strategy with consistency to our business partners with transparency, integrity and faith
HHITREN BARTE S HERRS ETFRTLRM

Compliant United | | |

to rules and internal regulations with diligence team W?rk to build success with persistence

AR NI BRI ETRT REBRY) BB

Committed

to the development of film industry with passion

HEFEX REARIEN

STRATEGY = r=xms=m

In line with the waterfall of revenue split, we adopt a strategy of bottom up approach
in our priority of development according to the following order:
RBITEDRORE SERATHIEFELEZREANNRREENERLD

1. Enlarge and strengthen our theatrical exhibition network, i.e. the distribution channel
MABAEENELHEEE CHREXRNES

2. Integrate with our distribution business to enhance synergy
IEBSEBENELEITERIAEDME AN HRZE

3. Participate with minimal risks production which in turn benefits our distribution and exhibition business
NREHNERIRE TR SUEEEENRRMBITEBELTE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEBRABRE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu"),

Aged 47,

Mr. Wu is the chairman, executive director and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company and currently a director of
Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company
Limited (“OSEG") and its subsidiaries. OSEG, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and being a substantial
shareholder of the Company, was founded by Mr. Wu in 2004 and is
principally engaged in film and television production, music and musical
production, artist management and advertising business in the PRC.
With regard to film, Mr. Wu acted respectively as executive producer of
the two Chinese films Red Cliff and The Warlords, as well as producer
of other Chinese titles including Call for Love, | am Liu Yuejin and
Dangerous Games. In addition, Mr. Wu has been involved in high
technology and telecommunications businesses since the 1990s. Mr.
Wu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the SOKA University Japan in 1992. Mr. Wu joined the Company in
October 2007 and is the brother of Ms. Wu Keyan, an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Wu is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pei Sen (“Mr. Li"),

Aged 63,

Mr. Li joined the Company as a non-executive director in March 2009
and was re-designated as an executive director of the Company in
April 2010. He is also the associate chairman of OSEG. Mr. Li was an
associate director of China TV Production Centre in 1994 and the
general manager of China Central Television in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Li
joined China International Television Corporation (“TVC") as president
and was involved in its corporate structuring. During his presidency
in TVC, Mr. Li was also in charge of television production, as well
as the domestic and global licensing business of Chinese television
programmes. Prior to joining OSEG as the associate chairman, Mr. Li
served as the director of China TV Production Centre in 2000. Mr. Li has
over 10 years of experience in film and television series production and
acted as the producer of more than a thousand episodes of television
series, including a number of popular and high audience rating titles
such as All men are brothers: blood of the leopard, Taiping Heavenly
Kingdom, Vernacular stories from the end of Western Zhou Dynasty
to the Qin Dynasty and The story of Hongkong and cartoon series
Journey to the West. In addition, Mr. Li is also a committee member
of the China Federation of Literary and Art Circles, a council member
of China TV Workers’ Association, the vice-president of China TV, Film
Productions Committee, a member of the censorship expert committee
of State Administration of Radio, Film and Television, and a consultant
to TVC.

EIFRITES

mRREE ((EEED

9+t

MAEERRRAEF ATEFRFTHEZREERE I
RERREEE (BER) ZRARAT ((HBX]) REMEB
RAZHREEE - BEARREBRELHSEIMALZE
RAF - RARREERR - AOEER-_TTHFE]
I FERTREEEFEZREREUE BERTEEH
B BAKERESER - AREFHE LD
BEEMMEZENFEIMBEM)ZATESR UK
RESMEZET 2EY  BIKEFFUEERE)  (FMY
FIBE)REFERE) - I MEEBNTFRELR
RESPELBMAES - MEER-NN_FEERA
FEEBARE METHEESLEM - AEEN-_FT
tETAMBEARR  RARRRTEFORHELLZ
B - MEEMBARBETHERARZES -

HITES

FEHFLEE(ELLE]D

NT=hk
FRER_ZEZNFZAMBARRNEETIFRTES
BR_E-TFMAFERRFNTES - TheE R
EEFR - FTREGR - NANEUFERETHBEEREIRIE
FOBIEME  BR-NAARFREPREESELRE -
FEER—NANEFMAFBEEERERERE ([FEE
RERAAR]) HERE - T2EECENS - ERE
EHEERERAATAREE  FEENEESRE
ER P EBRE BRI IR - RINBE
AEEBMAESRZA  FRESNR -_SZZFHEEF
BERBIEEROEE - FRERBYRBRFESR
e mABETFER  TEERRBTHEREES -
BRI E) - COFXE) ~ CREZIE) - (&Y
WEILBE KAL) EZHWR T AT EREE
ZBERBIER o WA FRETFRTEXHES - PE
BEREMRPGEE PHERHZEQESR
REYREYEELEGFRZNTHBERERAAFE
f e

4 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEBEABE

Mr. Chang Tat Joel (“Mr. Chang”),

Aged 43,

Mr. Chang was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 26 April 2010. Mr. Chang has been the chief financial
officer of the Company since September 2009. He has extensive
experience in capital markets. Mr. Chang co-founded AID Partners
Capital Ltd. (“AID Partners”) in 2007 and is currently the managing
partner and investment committee member of AID Partners, responsible
for its strategic and investment planning and overseeing implementation
of its investment plans. Prior to the establishment of AID Partners, Mr.
Chang was the chief investment officer of Investec Asia Limited and a
managing director of China Everbright Capital Limited. Mr. Chang is also
a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from Monash University in
1990.

Ms. Wu Keyan (“Ms. Wu”),

Aged 39,

Ms. Wu is an executive director of the Company. She was re-designated
as an executive director on 9 September 2010 and prior to that, she
had been the alternate director to Mr. Wu since January 2008. Ms. Wu
has been a senior manager of the Administration and Human Resources
Department of the Group since 1 January 2008 and is responsible for
the administrative management of the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Ms. Wu has served in various corporations in Japan
and Hong Kong and is currently the deputy general manager of Holdrich
Investment Limited, a company specialising in telecommunications,
semiconductor and technology-related businesses. Ms. Wu graduated
with a bachelor’s degree in Business Management from the Faculty of
Commerce at Takushyoku University in Japan in 1996. Ms. Wu is the
sister of Mr. Wu.

Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon (“Mr. Tan"),

Aged 42,

Mr. Tan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23
August 2010. Mr. Tan is also the senior vice president of the Company
and manages the Company’s operations in Taiwan. He is also the
general manager of Vie Show Cinemas Co. Ltd., a Taiwan incorporated
company which is owned as to 35.71% by the Company, and the
general manager of Vie Vision Pictures Co. Ltd., in which the Company
has 23.21% indirect interest in Taiwan. He joined the Company in
2001 as general manager, Exhibition. Prior to that, he had worked with
Golden Village, a company which is owned as to 50% by the Company,
since 1992. Mr. Tan holds a master degree in business administration
in Nanyang Technological University’s Nanyang Fellows Program. He
graduated from Western lllinois University with a degree in business
with majors in finance and economics. Mr. Tan was appointed as senior
vice president of the Company on 15 February 2008, and as acting chief
operating officer of the Company with effect from 23 August 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEBRABRE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Leung Man Kit Michael (“Mr. Leung”),

Aged 57,

Mr. Leung has been an independent non-executive director, and a
member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee of
the Company since February 2008. Mr. Leung obtained a bachelor’s
degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong in 1977 and
has over 20 years of experience in project finance and corporate finance.
He has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital (China) Limited, SG
Securities (HK) Limited (previously known as Crosby Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited), Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong Branch, and
Optima Capital Limited (previously known as KE Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited). Mr. Leung was a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AlG
Infrastructure Fund L.P. Mr. Leung is also currently Responsible Officer
of VC Group which provides advice on corporate finance under the type
6 licence granted under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"). He is also an independent non-
executive director and audit committee member of NetEase, a NASDAQ
listed company, and an independent non-executive director and audit
committee member of Junefield Department Store Group Limited,
China Ting Group Holdings Limited and Anhui Expressway Company
Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Mr. Leung is also a member and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of Junefield Department Store Group Limited,
a member of the nomination committee of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited, and the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of Anhui Expressway
Company Limited.

Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George (“Mr. Huang”),

Aged 62,

Mr. Huang has been an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee of the Company since November
2006. Mr. Huang graduated from the College of Telecommunications
Engineering, National Chiao-Tung University in Taiwan, and co-
founded the Acer Group in 1976. He has been heavily involved in the
development of microprocessor technology applications and services
and was the first person in Taiwan to promote and sell microcomputers
to international markets in 1979. Mr. Huang is presently a supervisor
of Acer Inc., Motech Co., Ltd, and Les Enphants Co., Ltd., which are
all public companies in Taiwan. He was distinguished as an honoured
graduate of National Chiao-Tung University in Taiwan.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong"),

Aged 32,

Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of the remuneration committee and the audit committee
of the Company with effect from 26 April 2010. Ms. Wong has over
nine years of accounting experience in the profession. She is the deputy
chief financial officer and joint company secretary of Yingde Gases
Group Company Limited which is listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and a constituent stock of Hang Seng
Composite Index. Ms. Wong was previously employed as the group
chief financial officer of OSEG. She was also previously employed as
the financial controller of Avex China Company Limited, a PRC joint
venture company established by OSEG and Avex Group Holdings Inc.,
a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong ceased to
be the group chief financial officer of OSEG and financial controller
of Avex China Company Limited in January 2008. She was also
previously employed as a manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms.
Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong. She is also undertaking an EMBA course
at the China Europe International Business School. Ms. Wong became
a chartered member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEBEABE

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin (“Mr. Kelvin Wu"),

Aged 41,

Mr. Kelvin Wu joined the Company in September 2009 and is currently
its chief executive officer. He graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.
He also obtained a postgraduate research certificate from Osaka
University of Foreign Studies. He has over 14 years of experience in
the finance and investment industry during which he worked for a
number of international investment banks. In this respect, Mr. Kelvin
Wu has experience in lead managing initial public offerings and advising
on mergers and acquisitions of media and entertainment related
companies. Mr. Kelvin Wu focuses on strategic planning and assessment
of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Kwok On (“Mr. Yuen”),

Aged 45,

Mr. Yuen has joined the Company in October 1996 and is currently
also the deputy chief financial officer of the Company. He is a member
of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master degree in business administration from
Hong Kong Baptist University.
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CHAIRMAN’S z##&E

STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of RABRRBRERRE (EE)BERARD(TERRARANDESE(E
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) EE)MARREREALARAMBAR (FEE IR [HAE
Limited (the “Company”), | am delighted to present to RNBE-Z-ZEF+-A=+—BLE+=ERA(=Z—-Z=F5
our shareholders, the Annual Report of the Company BEEIRHRERE) 2FH -

together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “OSGH")
for the 12 months ended 31 December 2010 (“Financial
Year 2010” or the “Reporting Period”).
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In 2010, while box office receipts stayed flat in North
America, the world’'s biggest film market, gross box
office receipts in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan
and Singapore recorded 64%, 14%, 14% and 1% growth
from 2009 in local currency, respectively, thanks to
increased supply of films in premium formats like 3D
and IMAX®, and the breadth of key films released, eg.
Avatar, Inception, Iron Man 2, Aftershock, Ip Man 2, Let
The Bullets Fly, Alice in Wonderland, Toy Story 3, Shrek
IV, Harry Potter and the Deathly Hallows Part 1, etc.

% change
2010 gross comparing to

box office receipt 2009
Mainland China RMB10.17 billion 64
Hong Kong HK$1,339 million 14
Taiwan NTD6,183 million 14
Singapore $$172 million 1

Riding on the favorable market conditions in our
operating territories, the Group delivered yet another
year of solid performance. During the Reporting Period,
the Group added seven cinemas with 38 screens,
ending Financial Year 2010 with 33 cinemas and 250
screens across Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and
Singapore. The Group remained the largest cinema
operator in Taiwan and Singapore in the Reporting
Period, and our flagship cinema in Mainland China,
namely, GH-MIXC in Shenzhen, had kept its position as
one of the country’s top three cinemas since 2006.

During Financial Year 2010, the Group served
approximately 23.8 million patrons and generated a total
of HK$952 million turnover, from theatrical exhibition
business. In addition, the Group distributed over 95 films
on big screens in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan
and Singapore during the Reporting Period. Together
with licensing income from the Group’s film library, the
Group generated a total of HK$125 million turnover

from film distribution business.
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CHAIRMAN’S =E#&#

STATEMENT

The Group's net profit attributable to shareholders
for Financial Year 2010 was HK$71 million, including
approximately HK$24 million of certain exceptional items
including gains and losses primarily from settlement of
legal dispute, disposal of two wholly-owned subsidiaries
operating cinema screen advertising business and
impairment provision on certain film right and assets.
Net of the above mentioned exceptional items, the
Group’s profit from normal operations would have been
HK$47 million for Financial Year 2010, up from HK$22
million for the same period a year ago.

Looking ahead, the 2011 line-up is rich, including Pirates
of the Caribbean: On Stranger Tides, The Hangover 2,
Kung Fu Panda 2, Cars 2, X-Men: First Class, Transformers:
Dark of the Moon, Harry Potter and the Deathly Hallows:
Part 2, Captain America: The First Avenger, The Founding

of a Party, The Xinhai Revolution, Women of Jinling, etc.

Furthermore, we are optimistic with a sustainable
demand for quality film entertainment in the region
in years ahead, in particular Mainland China, because
of the increasing numbers of high quality Chinese
films, the significant potential for higher penetration,
supportive regulatory environment, resilience through
economic cycles, and most importantly, movie-going as a
convenient and affordable out-of-home entertainment is
gaining popularity amongst the general Chinese public.
According to EntGroup Inc., the gross box office receipts
for urban area in Mainland China will increase to RMB21
billion by 2012.

In January 2010, the State Council of the People’s
Republic of China promulgated the “Directive on
Promoting Prosperous Development of Film Industry” ([
B BN REEYEXERERNIEZGER) ), which
is a directive on the guidance to drive the growth of the
film industry. In the Twelfth Five-Year Plan released in
March 2011, culture industry will be promoted as a pillar
industry for the country’s economic development in the
2011-2015 period. The Group believes its rapid expansion
into Mainland China’s theatrical exhibition market makes

it a major beneficiary of such positive developments.
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The Group’s long term goal to become one of the
leading exhibitors in Mainland China remains intact,
although we see plenty of challenges ahead. The Group
has strengthened execution, business development
and merger and acquisition effort to combat all such
challenges, and to forge ahead in the nascent film

industry in Mainland China.

During the Reporting Period, the Group added seven
cinemas with 39 screens in Mainland China’s cities of
Beijing, Wujiang, Jingdezhen, Chongging, and Hefei,
including “Orange Cinema” at PCCW Centre in Beijing,
which is an innovative membership movie theater with
a sophisticated club ambiance. Since beginning of 2011,
the Group had opened another two cinemas with 17
screens in Dongguan and Wuxi, making the Group’s
cinema portfolio in operation with 11 cinemas and 77
screens in Mainland China as of 31 March 2011.

Up to 31 March 2011,
agreements to open another 42 new cinemas with
342 screens in Mainland China by 2013, although the
number may vary due to the actual handover date,

the Group has signed lease

the progress of internal decoration and fit-out, and
application of relevant license. As of 31 March 2011,
18 cinemas with 141 screens were in various stages of
internal decoration, fitting out and license application.
The Group will continue soliciting new lease agreements,
and seek cooperation with existing operators to form
joint ventures to convert existing old cinemas in prime

location to modern multiplexes.

In September 2010, the Group completed the strategic
acquisition of approximately 3.33% of Legend Pictures
LLC. (“Legendary”), which is an independent production
company founded in 2004 to create, develop, co-produce
and co-finance major motion pictures, to further expand
the Group’s film production and distribution business.
Legendary’s productions to date, to name a few, include
Inception, Clash of the Titans, The Dark Knight, 300 and
The Hangover.
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CHAIRMAN’S =E#&#

STATEMENT

Outside of Mainland China, the Group completed
renovation of the Vie Show Kaohsiung (with 16 screens)
in Taiwan and replaced one traditional auditorium of
the cinema with an IMAX® screen in April 2010, thus
expanding its IMAX® footprint to two screens. In Hong
Kong, the Group became the first and only cinema
operator bringing live football matches to patrons in 3D
format in July 2010. In Singapore, the Group completed
renovation of GV Yishun (with 10 screens) in November
2010.

In 2011, the Group expects to open four new cinemas
with a total of 32 screens in Taiwan and Singapore, and
close down one cinema with six screens in Hong Kong.
The Group also plans to renovate three cinemas with
collectively 38 screens in Taiwan. The Board believes the
expansion and renovation will further strengthen the

Group’s leading position in the respective markets.

The Group remains committed to improving movie-going
experience for our patrons. As Taiwan's exclusive digital
IMAX® operator, the Group plans to add three new
digital IMAX® screens in 2011. In Hong Kong, the Group
signed an agreement with D-BOX Technologies Inc. to
introduce Hong Kong D-BOX motion systems, which
generate seat motions that are synchronized with the

onscreen motion of the film.

In view of the growing demand for Chinese-language
films, the Group plans to recommence production
business in Hong Kong starting from 2011. As of 31
March 2011, one film project is in pre-production stage.
The Group is also actively expanding partnership with
mobile service providers to roll out mobile distribution of
films and TV titles in the Group’s film library. In addition,
the Group is under negotiation to distribute foreign

film(s) on big screens in Mainland China in 2011.
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On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to
express our appreciation to our shareholders, who share
the same vision and commitment to the development of
film industry in the region. | also take this opportunity to
thank all of my colleagues in different countries for their
dedicated efforts and continuing contributions during

the year to the Group.

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2011
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BERXEREERAS

(as of 31 December 2010)
BEZZ—ZF+=-A=+—H)

CHINA A E]
60 SCREENS / R &

SINGAPORE 33
73 SCREENS / $1.5

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

To coincide with the financial year end date of film exhibition
business of the Group in Mainland China, the Company
has changed its financial year end date from 30 June to 31
December starting from the financial year 2009. Accordingly,
the reporting period for the financial year 2009 covers a period
of 18 months from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2009 (“Financial
Year 2009"), whereas the reporting period for the financial
year 2010 covers a period of 12 months from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2010 (“Financial Year 2010" or the “Reporting
Period”). Unaudited key financial figures cover a period of 12

months from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009 (“Pro-forma
2009 Period”) are presented for comparison purpose. The
difference in duration of the different financial periods should
be considered when making year-on-year comparisons.

OSGH’S CINEMA PORTFOLIO
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TAIWAN 5&
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For Financial Year 2010, the Group’s turnover from continuing
operations totaled HK$1,078 million, representing a significant
33% increase from HK$810 million recorded for Pro-forma
2009 Period. Such improvements were attributable to maiden
contribution from new cinemas opened in different operating
regions by the Group, and also reflecting the overwhelming
response to premium-priced 3D movies during the Reporting
Period.

As a major and leading cinema operator in Asia, the Group
operated 33 cinemas with 250 screens across Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore as of end 31 December
2010 (comparing to 26 cinemas with 212 screens as of end
31 December 2009). During the Reporting Period, major
Hollywood blockbuster titles were Avatar, Toy Story 3, Alice
In Wonderland, Harry Potter and the Deathly Hallows Part
1 and Inception, and major Chinese blockbuster titles were
Aftershock, Let the Bullets Fly, Ip Man 2, If You Are the One 2
and Detective Dee and the Mystery of the Phantom Flame.

______

_____
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OSGH’S CINEMA NETWORK
IN MAINLAND CHINA (UNDE
& R E R Bl A it 2 82334

(Based on signed contracts)
(BIREZE RN 2 HE W)

Northern
China Region -
ZIE

18 Cinemas / Pt

130 Screens / $R3

Eastern
ChinaRegion -
ERE

== B/
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121 Screens / %

Southern
China Region -
EEHE

11 Cinemas / Ebx
91 Screens / $R%

Central Western
ChinaRegion -
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9 Cinemas / B&/Ft
77 Screens / i3
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The Group reported a net profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$71 million for Financial Year 2010, including an exceptional
gain from settlement of legal dispute on a lease agreement
and provision of consultancy service in relation to a cinema
site in Beijing amounted to HK$21.5 million (net of related
expense and relevant taxes). In addition, the Group sold 100%
equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries operating
cinema screen advertising business together with shareholder’s
loan for cash consideration of approximately HK$20.6
million in December 2010, and recorded a disposal gain of
HK$11.3 million. These exceptional gains were partly offset
by impairment provision on certain film rights and assets. Net
of the above mentioned exceptional items, the Group's profit
from normal operations attributable to shareholders would
have been HK$47 million for Financial Year 2010, comparing to
HK$22 million for Pro-forma 2009 Period. The Group’s EBITD
recorded for Financial Year 2010 was HK$165 million, up from
HK$83 million of Pro-forma 2009 Period.

________________________________________________________
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In Financial Year 2010, the Group spent approximately HK$29
million of headquarter expenses for expansion and development
of cinema projects in Mainland China (HK$12 million for Pro-
forma 2009 Period) and such development costs were charged
to the income statement during the Reporting Period. The
Group also recorded approximately HK$7 million pre-operating
expenses for our new cinemas in Mainland China during
Financial Year 2010. The Group believed such expenses were
prerequisite to positive economic benefits in the coming years.

______

_____
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The Group completed a top-up placing of 340 million new
shares and raised net receipt of approximately HK$314 million
in February 2010, the Group's cash balance remained strong at
HK$458 million as of end December 2010. The Group believes
that such a healthy financial position will help facilitating our
aggressive business expansion plan in Mainland China, including
any potential merger and acquisition opportunities.

In September 2010, the Group completed the strategic
acquisition of approximately 3.33% of Legend Pictures LLC
("Legendary”) for a cash consideration of USD25 million.
Legendary is an independent production company, and has
produced blockbusters, to name a few, including /nception,
Clash of the Titans, The Dark Knight, 300 and The Hangover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Theatrical Exhibition

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS

Mainland Hong
China Kong  Taiwan Singapore
Number of cinemas* 9 7 8 9
Number of screens* 60 32 85 73
Admissions (million) 30 29 9.3 86
Net average ticket price (HK$) 47 63 59 50

* end of period

In Financial Year 2010, the Group’s 33 cinemas generated
HK$952 million of turnover to the Group, accounting for 88%
of the Group's total turnover. The Group's cinemas served
approximately 23.8 million patrons during the Reporting Period,
and gross box office receipts on a full and aggregated basis,
were registered at HK$1,312 million.

This was strongly supported by the Group’s pioneering
commitment in premium exhibition formats and movie-going
experience. Over 50% of the Group’s screens are currently
installed with digital equipment, and over 35% of the Group’s
screens are 3D compatible. The Group also became the first
and only cinema operator to bring 3D-live football matches to
patrons in Hong Kong in July 2010. The Group also completed
the renovation of GV Yishun in Singapore, and made it Asia’s
first eco-friendly cinema. In addition, the Group completed
renovation and replaced a traditional screen with an IMAX®
screen at Vie Show Kaohsiung in Taiwan, thus increasing the
Group's total number of IMAX® screens to two.

______
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK

Mainland China

In 2010, box office receipts of urban area in Mainland China
totaled RMB10.17 billion, representing a remarkable 64%
increase from 2009, partly attributable to the 3D blockbuster
Avatar, which alone contributed RMB1.38 billion of gross box
office receipts in 2010, and partly attributable to the increasing
popularity of movie-going as a convenient and affordable out-
of-home entertainment. Local films also delivered yet another
year of promising growth in 2010, with Aftershock grossed
RMB673 million in box office receipts (comparing to RMB415
million of the top grossing film The Founding of a Republic in
2009).

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN
MAINLAND CHINA

12 months 12 months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Number of cinemas* 9 2

Number of screens* 60 21

Admissions (million) 3.0 1.1

Net average ticket price (RMB) 41 48
Gross box office receipt

(RMB million)* 131 56

* end of period
*# before deduction of government taxes and charges

In Financial Year 2010, admissions of the Group’s multiplexes
in Mainland China amounted to approximately 3.0 million and
gross box office receipts totaled RMB131 million, representing
177% and 134% growth from the same period last year,
respectively, thanks to rich film line-up, strong market demand
and the Group's rapid expansion.

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the
acquisition of Jingdezhen Meilin cinema with six screens, Beijing
Shangdi Meilin cinema with five screens. In addition, the Group
opened five new cinemas with collectively 28 screens in Beijing,
Chongging, Hefei and Wujiang. As of end 31 December 2010,
the Group operated nine cinemas with 60 screens in Mainland
China, up from two cinemas and 21 screens a year ago.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WK

Net average ticket price was RMB41 during the Reporting
Period, however, down from RMB48 during the same period
a year ago. Although ticket price increased on a same-store-
basis with release of more premium-priced 3D films during
the Reporting Period, such increase was more than offset by
the Group’s expansion into the mass market and promotional
discount offered by the Group’s new cinemas.

The Group's flagship GH-MIXC cinema in Shenzhen performed
surpassingly and recorded RMB76 million in gross box office
receipts during the Reporting Period, representing a strong
36% growth as compared with the same period a year ago,
and ranked the third largest amongst around 2,000 cinemas in
Mainland China by box office receipts. The GH-MIXC cinema
alone possessed 16% market share in Shenzhen by box office
receipts in 2010.

Hong Kong
Hong Kong market as a whole recorded a box office receipts
of HK$1,339 million in 2010, representing an increase of 14%

from a year ago.

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN HONG
KONG

12 months 12 months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Number of cinemas* 7 7
Number of screens* 32 33
Admissions (million) 2.9 2.4
Net average ticket price (HK$) 63 61
Box office receipt (HK$ million) 183 146

* end of period

With maiden contribution from two new multiplexes, GH
Citywalk and GH Whampoa, which were both opened in
December 2009, the Group's cinemas in Hong Kong recorded
box office receipts of HK$183 million in Financial Year 2010, up
from HK$146 million during the same period a year ago, and
market share increased from 13% to 14%. In 2010, the Group
also became the first and only cinema operator bringing live
football matches in 3D format in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Taiwan

Taipei City as a whole recorded a box office receipts of NTD3.1
billion in 2010, representing an increase of 14% from a year
ago. This was mainly attributable to continuing excellent
performance of 3D movies, which becomes a big hit in Taiwan.

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN TAIWAN

12 months 12 months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Number of cinemas* 8 8

Number of screens* 85 85

Admissions (million) 9.3 8.2

Net average ticket price (NTD) 236 217
Box office receipt

(NTD billion) 2.2 1.8

* end of period

With the opening of the new 9-plex at Taipei Q Square in
December 2009, and the addition of one IMAX® screen in
Kaohsiung in April 2010, the Group’s 35.71%-owned Vie Show
Cinema Company Limited (“Vie Show") recorded box office
receipts of NTD2.2 billion for Financial Year 2010, up 22%
from NTD1.8 billion for Pro-forma 2009 Period. In Taipei City,
Vie Show increased its market share to 36% in 2010 from 30%
a year ago. The Group's share of net profit for the Reporting
Period from Vie Show was HK$25 million, comparing to HK$18
million for Pro-forma 2009 Period. The Financial Year 2010
results also reflected a reduction of corporate income tax rate
by 3% to 17%.
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Singapore

OPERATING STATISTICS OF THE GROUP'S CINEMAS IN
SINGAPORE

12 months 12 months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Number of cinemas* 9 9
Number of screens* 73 73
Admissions (million) 8.6 8.3
Net average ticket price (S$) 8.8 8.4
Box office receipt (S$ million) 76 70

* end of period

Singapore box office receipts totaled S$172 million in 2010, up
slightly from S$171 million in 2009. The Group's 50%-owned
“Golden Village” cinema circuit remains the brand of choice for
cinema goers in Singapore and maintained its leading position
in Financial Year 2010 with a market share of 44% by reporting
a box office receipts of S$76 million, which was 8% higher
than that of the same period a year ago. The Group shared a
net profit of HK$35 million for the Reporting Period, up from
HK$31 million for the same period a year ago.

Film Distribution and Production

SEGMENTAL FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

12 months 12 months

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Films distributed Over 95 Over 65
Segment turnover

(HK$ million) 125 93

The Group's film distribution and production business recorded
turnover of HK$125 million in Financial Year 2010, comparing
to HK$93 million for Pro-forma 2009 Period. During the
Reporting Period, the Group distributed over 95 films in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan (over 65
films for Pro-forma 2009 Period). The Group's film library of
more than 140 films and TV titles with perpetual distribution
rights contributed steady licensing income in Financial Year
2010 to the Group.
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PROSPECTS

The Group has focused on strengthening and growing a fully
integrated film entertainment business in Mainland China.
As of 31 March 2011, the Group operated 11 cinemas with
77 screens in Mainland China, up from nine cinemas and 60
screens at end of 2010. Up to 31 March 2011, the Group had
signed lease agreements to open another 42 new cinemas with
342 screens by 2013, although the number may vary due to the
actual handover date, the progress of internal decoration and
fit-out, and application of relevant license.

As of 31 March 2011, 18 cinemas with 141 screens in
Chengdu, Chongqging, Dalian, Dongguan, Guangzhou,
Huizhou, Nanjing, Shangrao, Shenyang, Wuhu, Wuxi, Xian,
Xining, Yangquan, Yinchuan and Yingkou were in various
stages of internal decoration, fitting out and license application,
and are in the pipeline for openings, and more will come in the
months ahead.

The Group will continue soliciting new lease agreements,
and seek cooperation with existing operators to form joint
ventures to convert existing old cinemas in prime location to
modern multiplexes. The Group has also been actively pursuing
cooperation with other studios, both in Mainland China and
Hollywood, for film co-production and distribution.

Outside of Mainland China, the Group expects to open three
cinemas in Taiwan, including a 9-plex near Banciao Station in
New Taipei City, a 7-plex in Taichung, and an 8-plex in Hsin
Chu, in 2011. Each of the three cinemas will carry one IMAX®
screen, and will therefore bring the Group’s total number of
IMAX® screens in operation to five by end of 2011 in Taiwan.
The Group also plans to renovate three existing cinemas with a
total of 38 screens in 2011. Looking ahead, the Group plans to
further expand its IMAX® footprint to a total of seven by 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In Singapore, the Group signed a lease agreement to open
one new cinema with eight screens in 2011. In Hong Kong,
although the Group closed down GH Hollywood in Diamond
Hill with six screens in March 2011 following expiry of the
relevant lease agreement, the Group remains committed to
provide pioneering movie-going experience to patrons in Hong
Kong, and signed an agreement with D-BOX Technologies
Inc. to introduce Hong Kong D-BOX motion systems, which
generate seat motions that are synchronized with the onscreen
motion of the film.

The Group has also been focusing on digitalization, and plans to
become a fully digital cinema operator by 2012 and to maintain
about 40% of the Group's screens to be 3D compatible.

In view of the growing demand for Chinese-language films, the
Group plans to recommence production business in Hong Kong
starting from 2011. As of 31 March 2011, one film project is
in pre-production stage. The Group is also actively expanding
partnership with mobile service providers to roll out mobile
distribution of films and TV titles in the Group’s film library. In
addition, the Group is under negotiation to distribute foreign
film(s) on big screens in Mainland China in 2011.

Currently, the Group has very strong liquidity and low financial
leverage. In order to cope with the rapid expansion, the Group
will utilize the available bank loan facility to finance the cinema
projects in Mainland China. The management will closely
monitor and maintain optimal gearing structure to limit the risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND LIQUIDITY

In February 2010, the Group raised HK$314 million (net
proceeds) through placing of 340 million shares of the
Company of HK$0.10 each (the “Share") at a price of HK$0.97
per Share to not less than six professional, institutional and
other investors which were third parties independent of and not
connected with any connected person of the Company. The
closing price of the Shares on the last trading day prior to the
date of the placing and subscription agreement was HK$1.07
per Share. In September 2010, the Group completed the
strategic acquisition of approximately 3.33% of the Common
Units of Legendary for a cash consideration of USD25 million.

As of 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash balance was
HK$458 million (31 December 2009: HK$518 million), and
outstanding bank loans totaled HK$104 million (31 December
2009: HK$87 million). As of 31 December 2010, the Group's
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of external borrowings
over total assets, was about 6% (31 December 2009: 7%).
Management will continue to monitor the gearing structure
and make adjustments if necessary in light of changes in the
Group's development plan and economic conditions.

The Group's assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in Hong Kong dollars except for certain assets and liabilities
associated with the investments in Mainland China, Taiwan
and Singapore. The overseas joint ventures of the Group are
operating in their local currencies and subjected to minimal
exchange risk on their own. Due to the volatility of the currency
market and future capital commitments mainly denominated
in Renminbi, management decided to maintain higher level of
deposits in Renminbi, thus lowering the exposure to exchange
risk. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) will
continue to assess the exchange risk exposure, and will consider
possible hedging measures in order to minimize the risk at
reasonable cost.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
of 31 December 2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEES AND B & RFMBER

REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 1,045 (31 December RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H AEEHF1,0458% (ZFZTh
2009: 418) permanent employees. The Group remunerates  F£+=-HA=+—H : 418%) 2BES - AEE T ERETE
its employees largely by reference to industry practice. In BHIETREESTH - BREHdE M NBBSELI  ETRER
addition to salaries, commissions and discretionary bonuses, K FE(E A RIREFEIHE - REBIBIEGES A ABEEIIE
share options are granted to certain employees based on {557 EEEEFGRNEAEE - RIS EBLEEH - WEE[
individual merit. The Group also operates a defined contribution R BRistRRERt a8 mELEZ SUHERR -

retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory Provident

Fund Schemes Ordinance and as at the end of Reporting

Period date, there was no forfeited contribution arising from

employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme.

________

_______

: ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
rq=d pmmea ANNUAL REPORT 2010

1

1

1



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

OSGH appreciates the important role of its employees play
in the Group’s continued success. The Group is dedicated to
develop and sustain a healthy culture in which our employees
contribute to their utmost to the success of the business as
well as their own career.

We believe in work-life balance and have been fostering
employee engagement in every possible way, Christmas
parties, annual dinners and spring dinners are always great
times when we share fun and joyfulness, not to mention
about the year of 2010 that marked the 40th anniversary of
OSGH, when our employees and stakeholders gathered to
celebrate this memorable event on May 8, 2010.

The Group is also playing its part in promoting and supporting
the community causes. OSGH has been engaging in
sponsorship of various charitable organizations. One of the
highlights is our participation to the Sedan Chair Race and
Bazaar 2010 in October, 2010.

In 2011 and beyond, the Group will continue to enhance our
employee engagement and corporate social responsibility.

ETRARE

BRABRRRAETNAKERINE LIDEEEAE - NEEH
NEREEFBRCAR - € ETAIEESAB NHEDER
REBHEXRREKY] -

REBERETEREEBVARGTE S ERIRESATH
REBE THIG2E  MBEREIRY  BERENTER
2 HEETEERER) - B2 - TFR/BERRRIBF
Eit - FEIRBRFER-Z-—TFRAN\BREE—ZEEILE

SR o

REBTPKIERER L FHHEREDY - BRERA-BEHIZE
ZEe  ER-E-TF+AZE0105EHRBULE -

RIZ——SRERFE  FAEEFEERSETRARER
R EEERE -

_____

(5]

XERSS(EE)ERAT | 29
3 2010 .

_____

_________

-

______



_______

_______

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEEREE

The directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”) have pleasure in
presenting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company which is a leading
integrated film entertainment company in the markets where the
principal activities of the Group consist of worldwide film and video
distribution, film exhibition in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore and films and television programmes production, provision of
advertising and consulting services in Mainland China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2010 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 65 to 140.

The Directors did not declare any dividend in year 2010.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2010.

ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On 10 February 2010, the Company entered into a placing and
subscription agreement (the “Agreement”) with Skyera International
Limited (“Skyera”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and wholly-owned by Mr. Wu, a Director, and independent third
parties, pursuant to which, amongst others, (a) Skyera agreed to sell,
or procure the sale of 340,000,000 shares of HK0.10 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Shares”) through the Placing Agents
(as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 10 February
2010) to the Placees (as defined in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 February 2010) (the “Placing”); and (b) upon completion
of, amongst others, the Placing, Skyera agreed to subscribe for
340,000,000 Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at a price of HK$0.97
per Share (the “Subscription”, together with the Placing, the “Placing
and Subscription”). The subscription price of HK$0.97 per Share
represented a discount of approximately 9.35% to the closing price
of HK$1.07 per Share immediately before the suspension of trading
of Shares at 2:30 p.m. on 10 February 2010, being the date of the
Agreement. The Subscription Shares represented approximately 15.44%
of the then existing issued share capital of the Company at the date
of the Agreement and approximately 13.38% of the then issued share
capital of the Company enlarged by the Subscription Shares. The Placing
and Subscription was completed on 23 February 2010. The difference
of HK$279,827,000 between the net proceeds of HK$313,827,000 of
the Subscription, after deduction of relevant expenses and the par value
of the Shares issued of HK$34,000,000, has been credited to the share
premium account of the Company.
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The Directors considered that the Placing and the Subscription provided
the Company with an opportunity to raise further capital to strengthen
the Company’s cash position for expansion of its cinema network in
the Greater China Region, while broadening the shareholder’s base of
the Company. The Directors intended to use the net proceeds of the
Subscription for its business expansion in the Greater China Region

(including potential acquisition of sizeable cinema network and forming
of joint venture with respective third parties to convert old cinemas into
modern multiplex) and working capital.

1 FS5R0R
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MRERNEE
Twelve Eighteen
Year months months
ended 31 ended 31 ended 31
December December December Year ended 30 June
BEZ+=-B #H=+=-R #E=TZ=A
Er=I[2 =+—H =+—H
LEE @A E+/EA BEAA=THLEE
2010 2009 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-BF —TTHE —TTNF —ZTTN\F —TTLF —ITITRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(KE&FR) (FiEEFE) (&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
Cc=27)) (#48E7) (48E7) C=7))
Consolidated income statement &4 &%
Turnover e 1,077,533 809,975 1,230,904 654,770 501,483 542,375
Profit before taxation [T BT as A 94,898 36,228 115,394 17,549 87,200 7,952
Income tax Fri 8t (22,511) (13,586) (20,484) (10,391) 414 (2,737)
Profit for the period/year from BELEEK Y
continuing operations AR FE R 72,387 22,642 94,910 7,158 87,614 5,215
Profit for the period/year from BRI EEB 2
discontinued operation ANEARE,E R A — — 1,198 3,911 8,949 —
Profit for the period/year AEARE, FEET 72,387 22,642 96,108 11,069 96,563 5,215
Attributable to: AR AR :
— Equity holders of the Company ~ — ANA BIRERA A 70,823 22,172 95,542 10,763 96,717 5,215
— Non-controlling interests — RIS 1,564 470 566 306 (154) —
72,387 22,642 96,108 11,069 96,563 5,215
L These figures are presented for comparison purpose.
# ZEHT IR BRARMES
BRERRE (KE)GRAH 31
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION BREREE
As at 31 December As at 30 June
W+=A=t+—H WAA=+H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
=t S LG — S —
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T FET FHET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audiited) (Audited)
(#&FR) (&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)
Consolidated statement SEMHEMRRE
of financial position
Fixed assets ETEE 681,465 395,055 367,395 262,189 247,540
Interest in associates NN P - = = 169,369 195,902
Amounts due from jointly FE U R
controlled entities NAIFIE — — 32,285 26,069 42,775
Loan to a joint venture partner BT —REEEH
ZE® — 5,357 — = =
Available-for-sale equity securities At HH &R A E % 246,083 1,500 = — ==
Prepaid rental e 30,435 5,592 8,015 8,704 11,502
Club memberships @ 2,490 2,490 3,590 3,590 3,590
Rental and other deposits A EEMES 63,809 56,214 54,006 51,507 53,130
Trademarks &L 79,785 79,421 79,421 79,421 79,421
Goodwill FEES 73,658 28,538 — — —
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 3,095 420 358 1,503 =
Non-current portion of pledged BHEFRITERZ
bank deposits SERNERER 29,476 25,038 10,133 2,049 1,870
Current assets mEEE 667,558 731,960 422,904 326,012 135,192
Assets of a jointly controlled BHERE 2 L EEE
entity held for sale RAVEE — — 141,037 — —
Total assets BEAE 1,877,854 1,331,585 1,119,144 930,413 770,922
Current liabilities mEEE 388,049 290,636 277,064 204,555 217,866
Liabilities of a jointly controlled FERFE Z ERES
entity held for sale NAIBE - — 101,135 — —
Non-current portion of bank loans #8747 & 3~ JEENHA
B 82,400 62,732 7,800 48,686 57,087
Non-current portion of A% 7 FERNED
convertible notes =i 6,662 6,150 — 100,590 19,618
Non-current portion of finance MEEEEMAERR
lease payables ZIEBNEIED A — — — 799 1,152
Amount due to a jointly FE— R E R A
controlled entity RAIFKIE — 5,357 — — —
Loans from joint venture partners A& BHIRE 2 EX — — 42,505 26,069 42,775
Loan from non-controlling IR IR R R it 2 B
shareholder — — 696 — —
Deposits received Bliige 5,318 4,887 4,248 3,700 4,284
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRBAE 19,623 13,868 16,540 7,999 7,274
Total liabilities BERE 502,052 383,630 449,988 392,398 350,056
Net assets BEFE 1,375,802 947,955 669,156 538,015 420,866
Non-controlling interests FFERR R 11,554 1,881 1,421 555 —
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE NOTE
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and convertible
note during the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in notes
29(a) and 26, respectively, to the financial statements.

Save for the share options as set out below and the outstanding
convertible note as set out in notes 29(a)(v) and 26 to the financial
statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2010.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the company laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 29(b) to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserve available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, representing the
retained profits, amounted to HK$16,468,000 (31 December 2009:
HK$18,745,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account,
contributed surplus and capital redemption reserve of HK$630,856,000,
HK$271,644,000 and HK$6,422,000, respectively, as at 31 December
2010 may be distributed to shareholders in certain circumstance
prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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AARR-_E—FE+-A=1+—BZ2ROEEERLSE
% BABBRKERE LB 55 630,856,000 7T
271,644,000 % 7T } 6,422,000 7T » AR & — L\ — 4
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2010 and up to the
date of this report were:

Chairman & Executive Director
Wu Kebo

Executive Directors

Li Pei Sen (appointed as Non-executive Director on
20 March 2009 and re-designated
as Executive Director on 26 April 2010)
Chang Tat Joel (appointed on 26 April 2010)
Tan Boon Pin Simon (appointed on 23 August 2010)
Wu Keyan (redesignated as Executive Director
on 9 September 2010)
Chen Xiaowei (appointed on 23 August 2010

and resigned on 9 September 2010)
Chow Sau Fong Fiona (resigned on 23 August 2010)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Leung Man Kit
Huang Shao-Hua George
Wong Sze Wing
Masahito Tachikawa

(appointed on 26 April 2010)
(resigned on 26 April 2010)

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation. Pursuant to Bye-
law 87(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, a retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election. Accordingly, each of Mr. Li Pei Sen, Mr. Huang
Shao-Hua George and Mr. Leung Man Kit shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Bye-laws 86(2) and 87(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
any Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his or her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting
(but shall not be taken into account in determining which particular
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation).
Accordingly, each of Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon and Ms. Wu Keyan
being the Directors appointed by the Board on 23 August 2010 and 9
September 2010 respectively, shall retire and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of Mr. Li Pei Sen, Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon and Ms. Wu Keyan has
entered into a service contract with the Company which is determinable
by the Company by not less than three months' notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of HK$0.10 each in the
issued share capital of the Company (the
“Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company

Name of Director/

EERFETHRAERKRS - HEAK
DHEREE 2 EERAR

RZZB—ZF+-A=+—H ARAZEFTREELT
BABRAR B E AAREER (&R ES LB K
PI(T 55 R EIE RG] B XVER) 2Bt - HEkmRE
R - EAARRIBERERE 5 NS GRHI% XV 3R 352
GEEZELMAEE  IRBEFEBRAXSMERA
A (B pr )R EMARRN([ EMAR R D) Pl £ T
AEFETEFRZOFRETRI(RETA ) EMER
N B FORR AT

() RAEQXFACSBRITRATEHR0.107BTK
B (TRHE]) - AT ZEBERDRERE
&2 S

* Approximate

percentage

of Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued share

Total capital of the
number of Company
Shares and * R RAAE

Chief Executive Number of Numberof  underlying Shares ~ RBRAAR
BE /TEAHAR Capacity Note Shares underlying Shares Bk  BERIREH
®E 17 fizt R HERHEE HRRAEE FAEESAES
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,383,704,720 (L) 26,698,224 (L) 1,410,402,944 (1) 55.45%
R corporations
REEEER 2 408,715,990 (5) — 408,715,990 (5) 16.07%
Beneficial owner 3 — 60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.36%
BREAA
Wu Keyan Beneficial owner 3 — 700,000 (L) 700,000 (L) 0.03%
ik EREAA
Li Pei Sen Beneficial owner 3 — 200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.008%
TR BREAA
Leung Man Kit Beneficial owner 3 — 200,000 (L) 200,000 (L) 0.008%
2RE EREAA
Huang Shao-Hua George Beneficial owner 3 — 1,200,000 (L) 1,200,000 (L) 0.05%
BOE BEaEEA
BREREE (£E) BRAE 35
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* Approximate
percentage

of Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued share

Total capital of the
number of Company
Name of Director/ Shares and *RARAEE
Chief Executive Number of Number of  underlying Shares BROREAT
B /TETHAE Capacity Note Shares underlying Shares RH R ERTRAR
e & first RE HRRAHA HERGAE FESOEIL
Tan Boon Pin Simon® Beneficial owner 3 — 3,200,000 (L) 3,200,000 (L) 0.13%
[y ¢iAl EREEA
Wu King Shiu Kelvin Interest of controlled 4 1,387,104,720 291,056,214 (L) 1,678,160,934 (L) 65.97%
A corporations
REEEER
Beneficial owner 3 — 21,000,000 (L) 21,000,000 (L) 0.83%
EaEaA
Chang Tat Joel® Interest of controlled 4 1,387,104,720 291,056,214 (L) 1,678,160,934 (L) 65.97%
EEgo corporations
REEEER
Beneficial owner 3 — 12,000,000 (L) 12,000,000 (L) 0.47%
EaREaA
Chow Sau Fong Fiona® Beneficial owner — — — —
BERO EaREAA
Masahito Tachikawa® Beneficial owner — — — —
V)IEA® EaREAA
& This percentage has been computed based on the total number i WEDHTRER-F—FEF+_A=1+—HE
of Shares in issue (i.e. 2,543,739,900 Shares) as at 31 December FITR (7482 (F12,543,739,900 iR AR (7)) a1 5 »
2010.
@ Appointed as executive Director on 23 August 2010. @ R-FE—ZFFNAF =ZAEZLRAHTEE -

® Appointed as executive Director on 26 April 2010.

© Resigned as executive Director on 23 August 2010.

@ Resigned as independent non-executive Director on 26 April 2010.

& R-E—ZFFNF -+ NAREERNTESE -

© HoE—

(d) A —F—

3
[
Al
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Notes:

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu") was deemed to
be interested in a total of 1,383,704,720 Shares, of which (i)
389,458,130 Shares were held by Skyera International Limited (a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu) (“Skyera”); (i) 408,715,990
Shares were held by Mainway Enterprises Limited (a company
wholly owned by Mr. Wu) (“Mainway"); (iii) 405,530,600 Shares
were held by Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International)
Holding Company Limited (a company which is 80% owned by
Mr. Wu) (“OSEG"”) and (iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by
Cyber International Limited (a company owned by an associate
of Mr. Wu) (“Cyber”). In addition, Mr. Wu was also deemed to
be interested in 26,698,224 underlying Shares which may be
issued upon full exercise of the conversion right attaching to
the zero coupon convertible note held by OSEG issued by the
Company in the principal amount of HK$9,024,000 (equivalent
to RMBS8,000,000) which is convertible into Shares at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.338 per Share (subject to adjustment) by
virtue of the SFO.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between Mr.
Wu and Mainway with Billion Century Group Limited (“BCG"),
BCG had subscribed for and Mainway had issued exchangeable
notes convertible into Shares held by Mainway to BCG for the
funding arrangement in relation to the mandatory unconditional
cash offer made by Somerly Limited on behalf of Skyera and
Mainway. As a security for the exchangeable notes as mentioned
above, 408,715,990 Shares held by Mainway were subject to a
first charge in favour of BCG.

These underlying Shares represented the Shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of share options granted by the Company
under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
28 November 2001 (the “2001 Share Option Scheme”) and 11
November 2009 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”).

Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin (“Mr. Kelvin Wu") and Mr. Chang Tat Joel
(“Mr. Joel Chang”) were deemed to be interested in 1,674,760,934
Shares and underlying Shares of which BCG was deemed to be
interested by virtue of the SFO since they owned 60% and 40%
of the issued share capital in AID Partners Ltd. respectively. AID
Partners Ltd. was the general partner of AID Partners GP1, L.P.
which was in turn the general partner of AID Partners Capital I. L.P..
AID Partners Capital I, L.P. was a private equity fund interested
in the entire issued share capital of BCG through AID Partners
Asset Management Limited. Of these 1,674,760,934 Shares and
underlying Shares in which BCG was deemed to be interested, (i)
by virtue of the subscription agreement entered into between Mr.
Wu and Mainway with BCG pursuant to which BCG had agreed to
subscribe for and Mainway had agreed to issue exchangeable notes
into Shares held by Mainway to BCG for the funding arrangement
in relation to the mandatory unconditional cash offer made
by Somerly Limited on behalf of Skyera and Mainway and the
related security documents, BCG was deemed to be interested in
1,061,686,954 Shares and underlying Shares of which Mr. Wu was
interested, (i) BCG was deemed to be interested in 408,715,990
Shares under a first charge on Shares held by Mainway in its favour
as security for the exchangeable notes as mentioned below; and (iii)
as BCG had subscribed for and Mainway had issued exchangeable
notes convertible into Shares held by Mainway, BCG was deemed
to be interested in 204,357,990 underlying Shares of which BCG
could convert under such exchangeable notes by virtue of the SFO.

BEFSFRBEGKD - GRKRxE(HREE]D
WAR BB A $£1,383,704,720k IR 17+ &
()389,458,130 R R th A E EE B AR A A
Skyera International Limited ([ Skyeral) # % : (i)
408,715,990 R B E T E 2 EH BN R A
Mainway Enterprises Limited ([Mainway|) #F £ :
(iii)405,530,600 % A& 15 £ 1h 5 A4 #E 5 80% AR 1 &)
REERIREEE (B ERARAT([HEXD)
FF A K (iv)180,000,000 A% AR 1 £ 1R 5t £ AO Bt 5
B A B2 &) Cyber International Limited ([ Cyber |)
BH- B REZHFREEEA - BEEN
WAE B H 26,698 2248 R D %S
BRHDARARRIMBEITLABERFEASEA
9,024,000 7T (A8 & X A K #8,000,0007T) 2 &
BT EIE TR IR 2 ) 2 A R E B R AR 7
0.33878 7T (A] T A% ) BABHITIERFTAT -

1B # ff 5t & & Mainway £ Billion Century Group
Limited ((BCGJ) T 32 89 R ¥ 13 % - BCGE R &
i Mainway E 1 BCG 17 7] 5 # /& H Mainway 15
BEZRBZAIRRER  ERFBEMNERRAR
7% Skyera J Mainway 2 tH 5% fll 14 4% &4 35 & U3
BHEZESTH - R ERATMRERZRE
408,715,990 & 1 Mainway £ B IR A% —H#i52
T IR F BCG ©

FZERBRO IEARRBRBEARBAR_TE—
FH—A-+T\BRBZEREFE(—FF—
FRBESE ) MR =—ETAF A+ —R&K
Mz R B ([ 2T FBRERE ) RY
2 BRI TR R AR T 2 IRAD ©

BIEFHFRBAERD - BASEBEE(HEE]D
N BP3E 48 5 A ([ 885 A& 1) 9 5l # B AID Partners
Ltd. (AID Partners Ltd. A AID Partners GP1, L.P. &)
L @ A % A A Partners GP1, LP. 8| &
AID Partners Capital I, LP.&) & @ & # A ° AD
Partners Capital I, LP.& #& #8AID Partners Asset
Management Limited # B BCG % #0 B & 17 ik
ZREENILABRAES) B EHITRA60% K% 40%
2w MESARBCGHERAEERER Z
1,674,760,934 I X 17 R ABRANR D HES #E2s - MU
L BCGHIA B A Ess 2 1,674,760,934 BRI 15 &
D E F - ()R 5%k £ & Mainway 82BCG
1M 2 REWE  BCGERERE

[ % 17 BCG 17 A] 3, ¥ /% FR Mainway 5 8 2 iz 7
Z AR R ESR - {E AT A B R QAR K Skyera
K Mainway 2 tH 3% il 14 #% (6R 14 3R & W g 1 5 IR 4R
B2 E &L HE  BCGHAR BIRMA KL £ %
B R 2 1,061,686,954 B AR 17 K A BE AR 17 8 5 #E
%5+ (i) BCG %47 A A 408,715,990 f% F Mainway
FE B E - E M T BCGER T Ml A
IRRIR 2 RFBHVRG 2w ¢ K (i) AR IR 25 S
E1&%) - EBCGE 3R M Mainway B 377 7] 1,12
A Mainway #5582 k{5 2 rT AR =45 (BCG AT %
SRR R AR (5 ) - BCG 4R A ¥#E A 204,357,990
AR RANR D 2 #e s ©
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Besides, Mr. Kelvin Wu and Mr. Joel Chang were deemed to be
interested in 3,400,000 Shares of which AID Partners Holdings
Ltd. was interested by virtue of the SFO since they owned 60%
and 40% of the issued share capital in AID Partners Holdings Ltd
respectively.

Abbreviations:
“L"  stands for long position
“S"  stands for short position

(ii) Interests in shares of associated corporations
Mr. Wu was also the beneficial owner of the entire issued share
capital of Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc., which beneficially
held 114 million non-voting deferred shares of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

In addition to the above, Mr. Wu had non-beneficial equity
interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company which were held
for the benefit of the Group.

Save as disclosed above and save for the disclosure referred to under
“Share Option Schemes” set out in note 29(a)(v) to the financial
statements on page 117 of this annual report, as at 31 December 2010,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures”
above and “Share Option Schemes” and “Connected Transactions”
below, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2010 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SO0 RIBFF RBEGG - BAEEREE
4 5 Bl # & AID Partners Holdings Ltd. B % 17 %
7N60% K2 40% HE & - #4455 ¥ B AID Partners
Holdings Ltd. # A #2452 3,400,000 A% 17 2 125 ©

g
L) iR
5] AR

(i) MBCEERGD 2R
{h 5% 4 75 /& Golden Harvest Film Enterprises Inc. &
BEBTREAZEZHEEBAN  MEARERFER
RAAFRIZ2EMBARIBRERIREFR AT 114
BERERSERLTRD -

BREdEN  MEERARENERBEARFZ
A THBARI EERRARESR

B £SO R A R ANF IR EE 193 B M BRI T 29()(v) B
#ERER S S RBERERN N2 —FF =
A=+—8 ARARZREEREIZTHRAERARA R
HEMBBEE(EERF S RHABGEMEXVER) 2
0 AR B E T U B G EM AR B ARER
N EEIRDIEXV B 352 67 & < B MATRLEk « =
RIFIZETRIE ME AR R BRI 2 s SOR R

ESREROIEEE 2 ER

BREXTEZEREZTHRABRBRND « ABRERMD K ERE
A& HEm MR | — B R X RERT 8 M RER 5
BREEN  ARALEEAMNBRARAREE T —TF
ToA=T—BLEFEEAREEESEEFALHE &
REE  RESAZREBIRM 18R FRAFREARR
AR TR AE A B B8 2 A s B iR T 2 o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

0]

2001 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the 2001 Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations, which became effective on 30 November 2001.
Eligible participants of the 2001 Share Option Scheme include
the Directors and other employees of the Group, shareholders of
the Company, suppliers of goods or services to the Group and
customers of the Group.

Each grant of the share options to the Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, must be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding independent non-executive Director who
is the grantee of the share option). In addition, any grant of
share options to a substantial shareholder of the Company
or an independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates which would result in the Shares issued
or to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and
to be granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (if any) (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue and
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares
at each date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of the grant, shall
be subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2001
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 30 days inclusive
of, and from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Directors, which
may not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or after
the date of grant as the Directors may determine in granting
the share options (which in any event must be prior to the close
of business on 30 October 2011) and ending on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the share options.
Save as determined by the Directors and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the date of the offer; and (i)
the average closing price of the Shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer, provided that the
price shall in no event be less than the nominal amount of one
Share.
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(ii)

40

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the 2001 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(if any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at 28 November 2001. This limit was refreshed by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 10 December 2007 in accordance with
the provisions of the Listing Rules. In addition, the maximum
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant under the 2001
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (if any) (including both exercised and outstanding
options) within any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further grant of share
options in excess of such limit (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant of such share option shall be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

As at the date of this annual report, options entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for an aggregate of 99,550,000 Shares
(representing approximately 3.9% of Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report) remain outstanding under the 2001
Share Option Scheme. The 2001 Share Option Scheme was
terminated with effect from 11 November 2009 when the new
share options scheme adopted by the Company on 11 November
2009 (the “2009 Share Option Scheme") became unconditional.
Notwithstanding the termination of the 2001 Share Option
Scheme, the outstanding options granted under the 2001 Share
Option Scheme remain in full force and effect in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the grant thereof.

Share options granted under the 2001 Share Option Scheme do
not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the
shareholders’ meetings.

2009 Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the 2009 Share Option Scheme for
the purpose to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to
the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants
of the 2009 Share Option Scheme include the Directors and
other employees of the Group, consultant or adviser, distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent customer and
business partner of the Group. The 2009 Share Option Scheme
became effective on 11 November 2009 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a period of 10
years from that date.

(ii)

EITERE T —FRREEI R AR BER
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Each grant of the share options to a connected person of the
Company, or any of their associates, must be approved by all of
the independent non-executive Directors (excluding independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the option).
In addition, any grant of the share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates which would result
in the Shares issued or to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the date of the
offer and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period up to and including the date of the
grant, shall be subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting with voting to be taken by way of a
poll.

The offer in relation to a grant of share options under the 2009
Share Option Scheme shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participant concerned for such period as determined by
the Board, which period shall not be more than 30 days from
the day of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Directors, the expiry date of
such period not to exceed 10 years from the date of the offer.
Save as determined by the Directors and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general
requirement that a share option must be held for any minimum
period before it can be exercised.

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares
on the exercise of a share option is determinable by the Directors,
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price per Share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share
option; (ii) the average closing price per Share as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share.

FBRAAQNRBEA LT MEE 2 BHEAB S
BENRAE - AAEBNIENITES (5 ARREAR
AZ B IENITEBRRIN) ZHUHE o 1EOD - REE
BRAOBREE B IEER12@E S BHERARREE
BRRENBILIERITES  REARSESEZBHE
ABHZ TR HE - i E R E R S
FZEALTZBBRE(RREETE  FHER
1T 2 BERRRE) 1T E 1R B BT e G 31T 2 IR 1D
P B IR E B HIE 31T % 19 0.1% sk 48 (B (AR 1K
B E AR ARG 2 W ERH )% 5,000,000
B BAEARRBRENRBRREAS ERINE
R EHEE o

BT NFRRE RN BREZEZAMA
Fé%ﬁJZHHF‘EH BEREZM - ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁFﬁT
1SHBREE A HRET 30 - MARATEZHR
ﬁﬁfﬂﬂ?‘; 1787TT - IRz TR mES
BEE - EZTEMZAERBTNSHEARR T ER
BERR T4 BRESSTAELRRHEEHE
iz ZESBREN WA ER G B
MERFFAE TREHREZ AT -
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The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of
all share options to be granted under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(if any) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at 11 November 2009, being 183,273,990 Shares. This
limit was refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2010
in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules so that
the maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 254,206,490 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution on 1 June
2010. In addition, the maximum number of Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of such limit (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant of such share option shall
be separately approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting with such participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this annual report, options entitling the
holders to subscribe for an aggregate of 254,206,490 Shares
(representing approximately 9.99% of Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report) (The total number of shares in issue
(i.e. 2,543,739,900 ordinary shares) as at the date of this annual
report) are available for issue under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme.

Share options granted or to be granted under the 2009 Share

EITERE TN FREREEI R AR BER
Ef@ﬁﬁﬁxﬁéﬁ?wﬂ@HﬂséﬁjZﬁfrﬁﬁ%Hx%ﬁﬁﬁj
FEROZERRE  AETHBHER-_ZTNE
+—A+—HZBETRM 10% B183,273,990
RS c RAFIREER T —TFE A —H%
E”tﬁiﬁH'JZ{%YEHQ?ZEiﬁAté%WXEEA
LR UBE =TT NFEBRETERAR
M%Hﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁiﬁjz,liéﬁx%ﬁﬁﬁ’éﬁzamﬂx
B T1E#8318254,206,490 X i% 1D » BIRA =&
TFENA—ABBEBAZREBEEHITRG
10% ° AN » REE 12 18 B B R EE R & B 1%
SWERN 7 EBRE(BE_STNFERETS
E BT RARITEERRE) B TR 1T
2R RE  TEBBEETRMD 1%  WREE
ZEBEBRERY B IEER 128 A R REEIMNR
Bz EIR 2 BBRE (BIEE 1T R ATE
ZHERERE) - BIZAERIERRAS FEESAD TH&
R - MzE2EEREBEABRERE

RAFERBE  RE_STNAFERETE - B
FEHBE AR A RIEA 254,206,490 B i 15 (7
ANER A HAMEE BTG 9.99%) (RAFHRE
7 B BT ID 428 - B2,543,739,900 B E@A%)

Z B (L EETT -
RiE—TTNFERERS ?ﬁﬂjiﬁﬂﬁﬂjzﬁﬁﬂﬁ

Option Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to dividends W EE A AEBERKRESERREAE &
or to vote at the shareholders’ meetings. ZREF o
Number of
Number of Closing price Closing price ~ share options
share options Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed per Share per Share outstanding
outstanding during the during the during the duringthe  immediately immediately asat
asat year ended year ended year ended year ended before before the 31 December
1 January 2010 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December the date date of 2010
Exercise RZZ-%% 2010 2010 2010 2010 ofgrantof  exerdiseofthe ~ R=F-FF
Name o category Date of grant price per -B-B BE-®-3F BZ-%-3F HEC%-3F HECE-BF  shareoptin shareoption  t=A=t-R
of participant of share option Share  Exercise period A€ tZA=t-R tZA=t-B tZB=t-B  1tZASt-R REBRERY RRBREGCE BESi 4
SRERETRR BRERLEE  SROGE 8 HREsA LEERY LEERE EEHE LEEXR BAZERUTE BAZSRUGE BREHE
(Notee) (Note ) (Noteb)
(Hiite) (Hifétb) (itb)
HK$ HKS HKS
AT i A1
Director
7
Masahito Tachikawa 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 200,000 - — - (200,000) 0451 — —
(Notea) ZIENF 1022 September 2014 (Notea)
UNEAHiEa) AA=t=A ZITAEAACTERE (Hita)

Z2-MEAAZTZE
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Name or category
of participant
SRERLIER

Huang Shao-Hua
George

B

W Kebo
B

Chow Sau Fong fiona
(Noted)
375 (Wit

Wu Keyan
23

LiPei Sen

TR

Chang Tat Joel
e

Leung Man Kit
FRE

Tan Boon Pin Simon
(Noted)
R (Hizc)

Date of grant
of share option

RBRRLAN

12 Apr 2007
Z3THE
BA+ZH

23 September 2009
“BRNE
hA=t=R

23 September 2009
ZZENE
hA=t=A

23 September 2009
ZRThE
hA=t=R

23 September 2009
ZEENE
hA=t=A

23 September 2009
ZRRNE
hA=1=H

23 September 2009
ZEENE
hA=t=A

23 September 2009
ZITNE
hA=t=R

12 April 2007
“RRLE
BA+=A

23 September 2009
=k
hA=t=A

Exercise
price per
Share
BRITRE

HKS
AT

0393

0453

0453

0453

0453

0453

0453

0453

0393

0453

Exercise period
8

(Notee)
(Hite)

1July 2007 to
30 October 2011
“TRLELA-RE
“2-—Fth=1A

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“ERNEAACTERE
“F-EEAA=TZA

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“ERAFAACTERE
“2-MEARZTZH

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“EENENAZTZRE
“F-REAA=TIA

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“ERAFAASTERE
E-MEAAZTZE

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“ERNENACTEAR
“Z2-mEAA=TR

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“RRNEAACTZRE
“T-mERA=TZA

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
ZBRAFARCTZRE
“Z-mEAA=TZR

1July 2007 to
30 October 2011
ZTRHELA-BE
S |

23 September 2009
1022 September 2014
“ERAFAASTERE
—Z-MERA=TZH

Number of
share options
outstanding
asat

1 January 2010
R-%-%%
-A-B
MRTEZ
BRERA

1,000,000

200,000

60,000,000

700,000

700,000

200,000

12,000,000

200,000

2,000,000

1,200,000

Granted
during the
year ended

31 December
210
HE-Z-3%
t=A=1-A
HEERY

Exercised
during the
year ended

31 December
2010
B2-z-3f
t=A=1-A
LERATE

Cancelled
during the
year ended

31 December
2010
BE-E-2%
t=A=t-A
LEEEE

Lapsed

during the
year ended

31 December
210
HE-Z-3%

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before

the date

of grant of
share option

t2A=t-0 REMBERY
LEERH AFZBRETE

(700,000)

(Note b)
(Aits)
HKS
AT

034

0451

0451

0451

0451

0451

0451

0451

034

0451

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of
exercise of the
share option
REBRETE
BHZERYTHE
(Note )
(Hitb)

HKS

AT

RARERRE (KB BRAF
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Number of
share options
outstanding
asat

31 December
2010
R-%-%%
t=A=t-A
HA{TEZ
BRERA

1,000,000

200,000

60,000,000

700,000

200,000

12,000,000

200,000

2,000,000

1,200,000
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Number of
Number of Closing price Closing price ~ share options
share options Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed per Share per Share outstanding
outstanding during the during the during the duringthe  immediately immediately asat
asat year ended year ended year ended year ended before before the 31 December
1 January 2010 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December the date date of 2010
Exercise RZ%-%% 010 2010 2010 010 ofgrantof  exerdseofthe ~ R=F-%F
Name or category Date of grant price per -B-B HECE-3F HECE-BF  HECT-®F HECE-RF shaeopon  shaeopon  tZA=t-R
of participant of share option Share  Exercise period WAz tZA=t-B  ftZA=t-A  tZAEt-B tZREt-B ZBERERL DRBRECE HETEZ
SRARETER RRERLEE  SRORE 8 HRERA LEERY LEERE LEEEH LEEXR BAZERUTE BAZSRUGE RREHE
(Notee) (Noteb) (Note )
(Hite) (Hito) (Hite)
HKS HKS HKS
A1 A1 A
Chief executive officer
BRHAE
W King Shiu Kelvin 23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 21,000,000 — — — — 0451 — 21,000,000
i ZIENF 1022 September 2014
AA=t=R “ERNEAACTERE
“E2-PmEAA-TR
Other participants
Efppaz
In aggregate 12 April 2007 0393 1July 2007 to 30 October 2011 2,200,000 = (2,200,000 = = 034 1.006 —
5t ZTRE “FRLELA-RE
mAt=A “Z2——%1A=1H
23 September 2009 0453 23 September 2009 2,850,000 = (1,800,000) - — 0451 0558 1,050,000
ZEENE 1022 September 2014
hA=1=R
13 November 2009 073 13 November 2009 1,200,000 - - — (500,000) 067 - 700,000
ZITNE to 12 November 2014
+-At+zR ZPRNEH-ATERE
“2-MET-ATZR
105,650,000 - (4,000,000) — (1,400,000) 100,250,000
Notes: Mzt -
(@)  The share options lapsed due to the resignation or retirement of (@) ZEBEREEEEESFESGREMARR
the relevant Director.
()  Being the weighted average closing price of the Shares (b) ANEEZFEREERLSITERERBERmE)
immediately before the dates on which the share options were B AT 2 B g Ui (8 -
granted or exercised, as applicable.
(c) Appointed as executive Director of the Company with effect from () RZZE—ZEFNA T+ =ZBEZEARERRRNIT
23 August 2010. =
(d)  Resigned as executive Director of the Company with effect from d RZZE-ZFNA-+=ABERERRBNT
23 August 2010. =
(e)  The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant (e) FEARE 2 5B AR B AR R H E BT =T

until the commencement of the exercise period.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2010 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors, their
respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

%A o

BLEs REBE—ZE-TF+-_A=+—H
LWLFE - AR R SE AR E R R BLERT S AER
RHYPHESR  REZEBZEBIRBIBHETL
BERREAR B L EAMERDEE 2 B R E#E

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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As at 31 December 2010, the Company had total share
options outstanding entitling the holders thereof to subscribe
for 99,550,000 Shares under the 2001 Share Option Scheme
and 700,000 Shares under the 2009 Share Option Scheme.
The exercise in full of these outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 100,250,000 additional Shares, representing
approximately 3.94% of the Shares in issue as at 31 December
2010, and additional share capital of HK$10,025,000 and share
premium account of approximately HK$34,083,470 (before issue
eXpenses).

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the disclosure under the heading “Connected Transactions”
below and save as detailed in note 33 to the financial statements on
page 130 of this annual report, none of the Directors had any material
interests, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during or at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s purchases
from its largest supplier and its five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 7 and 27 percent of the Group’s purchases, respectively.

The Group's sales to its largest customer and its five largest customers
accounted for approximately 1 and 3 percent of the Group’s sales,
respectively.

None of the Directors, or any of its associates, or any of the shareholders
of the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5 percent of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

R-ZE—ZTFE+-_A=+—8 ARQaBEETFH
BEARANAURE-_ST—FERETZIRES
$£99,550,000 FZ f& 10 R AR IE =T N FEAREERT
EIRME A £ 700,000 PR AR 2 (M ARTT{EEREARAE - 1R
BARNRZEAEAALEE  2EITERT ZHER
T 7 Bk 28 BUEE YN E£1T 100,250,000 A% B4 (157 —
E-TE+-A=1+—HEETRN%3.94%) -
It 58 INEE A AR 7R 10,025,000 578 7T B AR A 34 (B BR 49
34,083,470 7T (RETEITERA) ©

BEEREN 2R

BT TR 5 ) — B & A 4 45 55 206 EL Bt
BHEMEIBAHREN  FEFEEERE_2—T
F+=B=+—BILFEAREE BRAR TR
HEA TSR 2 EAEASOPERE R MEREE
Kfas -

FEEFRMEER
HE_Z-—ZTF+_A=+—HULEFE AEBEHHER
AR AABEAFEE 2 BEES OGN EEE
EEZ 7% N 27% °

FEFREZFATFRARTFEH 2 HER DRI
HAERBHERE L 1% 3% °

ARABZESAREEABBALTARESIRANES
RRFBEITRANS% A E 2 BRI MEERRNEEE AR
5P RSB ERE R -

BREREE (£E) BRAE 45
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2010, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had the following interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

FERRREMATRRO RAEER
B2 EBRRKRE

REFEMH R-F—ZTF+-_H=1+—R  REAQHA
RIEE 75 K I 16015 XV 3058 336 1617 B 2 B M FTad
B THAL(ARAEFHEETBRAEUINRAR
AR AR D T IFE A T REIORR

*Approximate

percentage of

Shares and

underlying Shares

in the issued

share capital of the

Total number Company

of Sharesand  *R#BREEKRH

Number of Number of underlying Shares ~ RALQFTET
Name of shareholder Capacity Note Shares  underlying Shares R 17 RARE R rdl
BREEE 2B 27} Mzt RAEE HERABBE REAEY AR
Wu Kebo Interest of controlled 1 1,383,704,720 (L) 26,698,224 (1) 1,410,402,944 (1) 55.45%
i corporations
R EEER 3 408,715,990 () 408,715,990 (5) 16.07%
Beneficial owner 7 60,000,000 (L) 60,000,000 (L) 2.36%
ERfEA
Wu King Shiu Kelvin Interest of controlled 6 1,387,104,720 (L) 291,056,214 (L) 1,678,160,934 (L) 65.97%
HRER corporations
AR R
Beneficial owner 7 21,000,000 (L) 21,000,000 (L) 0.83%
ERBAA
Chang Tat Joel Interest of controlled 6 1,387,104,720 (L) 291,056,214 (L) 1,678,160,934 (L) 65.97%
Elf=3t] corporations
XEEERER
Beneficial owner 7 12,000,000 (L) 12,000,000 (L) 0.47%
EREBA
Skyera International Limited  Beneficial owner 2 389,458,130 (L) — 389,458,130 (L) 15.31%
("Skyera”) ERBEEA
Mainway Enterprises Limited ~ Beneficial owner 3 408,715,990 (L) — 408,715,990 (L) 16.07%
(“Mainway") BEaEEA
408,715,990 (5) — 408,715,990 (5) 16.07%
46 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity Note Shares
BRREE /2B ) Mt REE
Orange Sky Entertainment Beneficial owner 4 405,530,600 (L)
Group (International) EREEA
Holding Company Limited
("OSEG")
BRIREEEE (B 12AR
BRAR([EX])
Cyber International Limited ~ Beneficial owner 5 180,000,000 (L)
("Cyber") BnEAA
AID Partners Ltd. Interest of controlled 6 1,383,704,720 (L)
corporations
REEE R
AID Partners GP1, L.P. Interest of controlled 6 1,383,704,720 (L)
corporations
REEERR
AID Partners Capital I, L.P. Interest of controlled 6 1,383,704,720 (L)
corporations
REEEER
AID Partners Asset Interest of controlled 6 1,383,704,720 (L)
Management Ltd. corporations
R EEER
Billion Century Group Interest of party to 6 974,988,730 (L)
Limited (“BCG") an agreement
under sections 317
and 318 of the SFO
RIEEH R E G
£317 k31812
BEETA 7 2 e
Security interest 6 408,715,990 (L)
H AR
Beneficial interest 6 =
Banftn
* This percentage has been computed based on the total number of Shares

in issue (i.e. 2,543,739,900 ordinary Shares) as at 31 December 2010.

*

Number of
underlying Shares

HERGHA

26,698,224

291,056,214 (L)

291,056,214 (L)

291,056,214 (L)

291,056,214 (L)

86,698,224 (L)

204,357,990 (L)

Total number

of Shares and
underlying Shares
[R5 R AR
RAEE

432,228,824 (L)

180,000,000 (L)

1,674,760,934 (L)

1,674,760,934 (L)

1,674,760,934 (L)

1,674,760,934 (L)

1,061,686,954 (L)

408,715,990 (L)

204,357,990 (L)

*Approximate
percentage of
Shares and
underlying Shares
in the issued
share capital of the
Company

* RO REER S
REXFE R
RS ird
BRBEDL

16.99%

7.08%

65.84%

65.84%

65.84%

65.84%

41.74%

16.07%

8.03%

REASLDREFAAR-FE-—FF+-A=+—AE
ERITRR D 4 8 (BN 2,543,739,900 AR T iRA% ) 51 & o

BRERRE (EE)ERDH
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Notes:

48

By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Kebo (“Mr. Wu") was deemed to be
interested in a total of 1,383,704,720 Shares, of which (i) 389,458,130
Shares were held by Skyera International Limited (a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Wu) (“Skyera”); (i) 408,715,990 Shares were held by Mainway
Enterprises Limited (a company wholly owned by Mr. Wu) (“Mainway”);
(iii) 405,530,600 Shares were held by Orange Sky Entertainment Group
(International) Holding Company Limited (a company which is 80%
owned by Mr. Wu) (“OSEG"”) and (iv) 180,000,000 Shares were held by
Cyber International Limited (a company owned by an associate of Mr.
Wu) (“Cyber”). In addition, Mr. Wu was also deemed to be interested in
26,698,224 underlying Shares which may be issued upon full exercise of
the conversion right attaching to the zero coupon convertible note held by
OSEG issued by the Company in the principal amount of HK$9,024,000
(equivalent to RMB8,000,000) which is convertible into Shares at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.338 per Share (subject to adjustment) by virtue
of the SFO.

Skyera is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Skyera.

Mainway is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wu, who is also a director of
Mainway. Pursuant to the subscription agreement entered into between
Mr. Wu and Mainway with BCG, BCG had subscribed for and Mainway
had issued exchangeable notes convertible into Shares held by Mainway
to BCG for the funding arrangement in relation to the mandatory
unconditional cash offer made by Somerly Limited on behalf of Skyera and
Mainway. As security for the exchangeable notes as mentioned above,
408,715,990 Shares held by Mainway were subject to a first charge in
favour of BCG.

OSEG (a company which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu) is interested in (i)
405,530,600 Shares and (i) 26,698,224 underlying Shares which may be
issued upon full exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the zero
coupon convertible notes held by OSEG issued by the Company in the
principal amount of HK$9,024,000 which were convertible into Shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.338 per Share (subject to adjustment).
Mr. Wu is a director of OSEG and Mr. Li Pei Sen is the associate chairman
of OSEG.

Cyber is a company owned by an associate of Mr. Wu.

Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin and Mr. Chang Tat Joel were deemed to have
interest in 1,674,760,934 shares and underlying shares of which BCG
was deemed to be interested by virtue of the SFO since they owned 60%
and 40%, respectively, of the issued share capital in AID Partners Ltd..
AID Partners Ltd. was the general partner of AID Partners GP1, L.P. which
was in turn the general partner of AID Partners Capital I, L.P. AID Partners
Capital I, L.P. was a private equity fund interested in the entire issued
share capital of BCG through AID Partners Asset Management Limited.
Of these 1,674,760,934 shares and underlying shares in which BCG was
deemed to be interested, (i) by virtue of the subscription agreement and
supplemental agreement entered into between Mr. Wu and Mainway with
BCG pursuant to which BCG had agreed to subscribe for and Mainway
had agreed to issue exchangeable note into shares held by Mainway
to BCG for the funding arrangement in relation to the mandatory
unconditional cash offer made by Somerly Limited on behalf of Skyera and
Mainway and the related security documents, BCG was deemed to have
interest in 1,061,686,954 shares and underlying shares of which Mr. Wu
had interest, (ii) BCG was deemed to have interest in 408,715,990 shares
under a first charge on shares held by Mainway in its favour as security
for the exchangeable note as mentioned below; and (iii) as BCG had
subscribed for and Mainway had issued exchangeable notes convertible
into shares held by Mainway, BCG was deemed to have interest in
204,357,990 underlying shares of which BCG could convert under such
exchangeable notes by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin and Mr. Chang Tat Joel were deemed to have
interest in 3,400,000 shares of which AID Partners Holdings Ltd. had
interest by virtue of the SFO since they owned 60% and 40% of the issued
share capital in AID Partners Holdings Ltd. respectively.

Both Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin and Mr. Chang Tat Joel are the directors
of BCG, AID Partners Asset Management Limited, AID Partners Ltd., AID
Partners Holdings Ltd., AID Partners Capital I, L.P., and AID Partners GP1,
L.P.
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7. These underlying of Shares represented the Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise share options granted by the Company under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 28 November 2001 (2001
Share Option Scheme and 2009 Share Option Scheme).

8. Upon (i) the full conversation of the zero coupon convertible note
described in the Note (1) above. (i) the full exercise of the exchangeable
notes described in note (6) above and (iii) the full exercise of the share
options described in the note (7) above, the ownership interests of Mr.
Wu, Mr. Kelvin Wu and Mr. Joel Chang in the outstanding issued share
capital of the company would be 47.41%, 5.45% and 3.56% respectively.

Abbreviations:
“L" stands for long position
“S" stands for short position

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has entered into
the following transactions and arrangements with connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company:

Disposal of subsidiaries and related business.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group disposed 100%
equity interest in Panasia Cinemedia (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Panasia
Cinemedia”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “First Disposal”) and entire issued share capital and shareholder’s
loan of Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited (“Panasia Cinema"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Second
Disposal”). Pursuant to an agreement dated 8 December 2010 between
Panasia Films Limited (”Panasia Films”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as vendor and 1t R & K EEEE AR A
7] (“PRC Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Orange
Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited
("OSEG") as purchaser in relation to the First Disposal, Panasia Films
agreed to sell and transfer 100% equity interest in Panasia Cinemedia
to the PRC Purchaser at a consideration of RMB16 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$18,800,000) based on the then exchange rate
of RMB1 to HK$1.175 payable in cash by the PRC Purchaser. The First
Disposal was completed on 31 December 2010.

Further, pursuant to an agreement dated 8 December 2010 between
Panasia Films as vendor and Orange Sky Entertainment International
Holding Limited (“HK Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of OSEG as purchaser in relation to the Second Disposal, the entire
issued share capital of, and shareholder’s loan owing to Panasia Films
by, Panasia Cinema, would be transferred and assigned (in the case
of the shareholder’s loan) by Panaisa Films to the HK Purchaser at a
consideration of HK$1.8 million payable in cash by the HK Purchaser.
The Second Disposal was completed on 31 December 2010.

Both the PRC Purchaser and the HK Purchaser are indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of OSEG, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company as at 8 December 2010. Under the Listing Rules, OSEG and its
associates (including without limitation, the PRC Purchaser and the HK
Purchaser) are connected persons of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(A) Procurement of screen advertising and in-foyer

50

advertising

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Orange Sky Golden
Harvest Cinemas (China) Co. Ltd. (“OSGH (China)”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Panaisa Cinemdia
entered into a screen advertising agreement dated 30 March
2010 and a supplemental agreement date 31 December 2010
whereby certain rights have been granted by OSGH (China) to
Panasia Cinemedia for procurement of the screen advertising and
in-foyer advertising at the Golden Harvest Shenzhen Cinemas
("GHS Cinemas") operated by OSGH (China) for a term from 1
April 2010 to 31 December 2013 at the annual fees for the first
two years commencing from 1 April 2010 of RMB2,200,000 and
RMB2,400,000 respectively and the annual fees for the periods
commencing from 1 April 2012 and ending on 31 December
2013 to be subject to an increment of 10%.

By a master screen advertising agreement dated 25 April 2010
and a supplemental agreement both between OSGH (China)
and Panasia Cinemedia, certain rights have been granted by
OSGH (China) to Panasia Cinemedia for procurement of the
screen advertising at all cinemas (other than GHS Cinema) in
the PRC operated or to be operated by OSGH (China) and/or
its subsidiaries or affiliates for the term of commencing on 1
May 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2013 at the aggregate
annual fees of approximately RMB8,790,000 for the first year,
which shall be subject to an increment of 10% (or such other
sum as specified in the said master screen advertising agreement)
after the first year and an increment of 10% based on the
aggregate annual fee of the preceding year after the second
year.

On 1 December 2010, City Entertainment Corporation Limited
("City Entertainment”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a screen advertising agreement with
Panasia Cinema (“HK Advertising Agreement”) whereby Panasia
Cinema will be appointed as an exclusive agent to procure the
screen advertising and in-foyer advertising at the cinemas in
Hong Kong operated and managed by City Entertainment for the
term of two years commencing on 1 December 2010 and ending
on 30 November 2012 at the annual fee calculated in accordance
with the revenue sharing ratio of City Entertainment as stipulated
in the HK Advertising Agreement.

Under the Listing Rules, OSEG and its associates are connected
persons of the Company. Upon completion of the First Disposal
and the Second Disposal, Panasia Cinemedia and Panasia Cinema
had become indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of OSEG and
thus became connected persons of the Company.
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(B)

Sub-leases of office premises

On 13 January 2011, Beijing Orange Sky Cinema Investment
Management Company Limited (”Sub-lessor”), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Wu (being the connected person of the
Company), entered into a sub-lease with Orange Sky Golden
Harvest (Beijing) TV & Film Production Company Limited, an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Beijing
OSGH") in relation to the sub-leasing of office premises with a
total floor area of approximately 166.49 square feet at Part of
First Floor and Second Floor of House No. 3 at No. 1 Anijialou,
Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC to
Beijing OSGH for a term of one year commencing on 1 July
2010 and expiring on 30 June 2011 at rent of RMB4.00 per
square metre per day equivalent to an approximate amount of
RMB243,075 per annum with the management fee of RMBO0.51
per square metre per day, equivalent to an approximate amount
of RMB30,992 per annum.

On 13 January 2011, the Sub-lessor entered into a sub-lease with
OSGH (China) in relation to the sub-leasing of office premises
with a total floor area of approximately 1,248.95 square metres
at Part of First Floor and Second Floor of House No. 3 at No. 1
Anjialou, Xiaoliangmagiao Ave, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the
PRC to OSGH (China) for a term of one year commencing on
1 July 2010 and expiring on 30 June 2011 at rent of RMB4.00
per square metre per day equivalent to an approximate amount
of RMB1,823,467 per annum with the management fee of
RMBO.51 per square metre per day, equivalent to an approximate
amount of RMB232,492 per annum (the above sub-leases,
collectively, the “Sub-Leases”).

The annual caps in respect of the Sub-Leases for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (from 1 July 2010 to 31 December
2010) and the year ending 31 December 2011 (from 1 January
2011 to 30 June 2011) are approximately RMB1,200,000
(equivalent to HK$1,392,000) and RMB1,200,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,392,000) respectively.

The above Transactions constituted a connected transaction
and continuing connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules and was subject to reporting, announcement.
Further details of the transaction are set out in the notes 33 and
34(d) to the financial statement.

Confirmation from Directors

The Directors, including the non-executive Directors, have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions mentioned
under section (A) and (B) above and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of the business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms to or
from independent third parties, and in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have advised that nothing
has come to their attention that caused them to believe the
continuing connected transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  have not been entered into in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing the transactions; and

(0 the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the relevant
announcement(s) of the Company, where applicable,
have been exceeded during the financial year ended 31
December 2010.

Save as disclosed above, details of the other connected
transactions and/or continuing connected transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements. These other connected transactions and/
or continuing connected transactions constituted de minimis
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules and were exempt
from the reporting, announcement, independent shareholders’
approval, and in the case of continuing connected transactions,
the annual review requirements. The independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed and confirmed that these other
connected transactions and/or continuing connected transactions
have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favorable to the Group than terms to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Remuneration of the employees of the Group is made/determined by
reference to the market, individual performance and their respective
contribution to the Group. As a long-term incentive, the 2009 Share
Option Scheme is in place and the details of which are set out above
and in note 29(a)(v) to the financial statements on page 117 of this
annual report.

Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of the
remuneration committee of the Company and the Board's approval.
Other emoluments including discretionary bonus and share option, are
determined by the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, abilities,
reputation and performance.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of the Company’s issued share capital as of the
date of this annual report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has made
charitable and other donations in Hong Kong totaling HK$33,000.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Ernst & Young (“E&Y"), who had acted as the auditors of the
Company in the preceding years, resigned as auditors of the Company
with effect from 12 June 2008 and Messrs. KPMG (“KPMG") were
appointed as auditors of the Company, following the resignation of E&Y
as auditors of the Company.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint KPMG as auditors of
the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wu Kebo
Chairman

Hong Kong
31 March 2011
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness and lead to its healthy growth.
The Company has taken steps not only to comply with code provisions
as set out in The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules but also to aim at
enhancing corporate governance practices of the Group as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code except for deviations from
code provisions, A.4.1 of the CG Code as summarized below:

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
Directors of a listed issuer should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. All non-executive Directors were not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws, accomplishing the same purpose
as being appointed for a specific term.

As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the code provisions of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code on terms no less exacting than
those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
The Company has made specific enquiries with all the Directors and all
of them have confirmed that they had complied with the requirements
set out in the Model Code and the Company'’s code for the year ended
31 December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors (including the Chairman of the Board) and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 4
to 7 of this annual report.

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
throughout the period to discuss the overall strategies as well as
operation and financial performances of the Group. Matters relating
to (i) the formulation of the Group's overall strategy and directions;
(i) any material conflict of interest of substantial shareholders of the
Company or Directors; (iii) approval of the Group’s annual results,
annual budgets, interim results and other significant operational and
financial transactions; (iv) changes to the Company’s capital structure;
and (v) major appointments to the Board are reserved for decisions
by the Board. The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group and implementation and
execution of Board policies and strategies to the executive Directors and
management of the Company.
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All Directors have been given sufficient time and effort to the affairs
of the Group and they have full and timely access to all relevant
information regarding the Group'’s affairs and have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the company secretary. The Directors may
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

Appropriate and sufficient insurance coverage has been effected by
the Company in respect of Director’s liabilities arising from the legal
action that may be taken against the Directors in relation to corporate
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activities.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Board meetings were held &% — = —ZTF+ A=+ HILFEYRTESE
and the composition of the Board and the attendance of the Directors &% EEE@MAERLKESTHEZEL MBI ¢
at the Board meetings are as follows:
Meetings Attended/
Members Eligible to Attend
SBHE fER
ME HESES
Executive Directors HMITEF
Wu Kebo (Chairman) Rk (£E) 77
Chow Sau Fong Fiona (resigned on 23 August 2010) BES (RN -_Z—ZFNA-+=HFT) 4/4
Wu Keyan (Note 1) i (KiaE1)
(re-designated as executive director on (R=ZZ—ZFNANBHAE
9 September 2010) WITES) 4/4
Chang Tat Joel (Note 4) RiEAE (A75E4)
(appointed on 26 April 2010) (R=Z—ZFMA =+ BEZE) n
Li Pei Sen (Note 2) B (H1at2)
(re-designated as executive director on 26 April 2010) (RZZE—ZFWA -+ BHATHITES) 7/7
Tan Boon Pin Simon (Note 5) BRCH (BfaE5)
(appointed on 23 August 2010) (R=ZZE—ZTFNA=ZT=HEZE) 4/4
Chen Xiaowei (Note 6) PREEDR (15t 6)
(appointed on 23 August 2010 and (RZZ2—ZFNAZT=REZE "
resigned on 9 September 2010) BRZT—TFNANBET) 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors HIIFHTEE
Huang Shao-Hua George mAEE 5/7
Leung Man Kit REG 717
Wong Sze Wing (Note 4) =HTAE (f1at4)
(appointed on 26 April 2010) (R=ZE—SFWMA =+ BEZT) 5/5
Masahito Tachikawa SINTEA
(resigned on 26 April 2010) (Note 3) (R=ZT—ZTF A = +/NBEHT) (A:E3) 0/0
Notes: Ftet :
1. Ms. Wu Keyan is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo. o hF R+ AR T4 2 LK -
2. Mr. Li Pei Sen was re-designated as executive Director with effect from 26 2. FERCLACTNMTIES BT FTFOA=-F+XHE
April 2010. RBAERK -
3. Mr. Masahito Tachikawa has resigned as an independent non-executive 3 VIIEAREFTBEVIFAMTESRANAHFNEZES
Director and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company KE BT TFMA=t+ARBER -

with effect from 26 April 2010.

4. Mr. Chang Tat Joel and Ms. Wong Sze Wing were appointed as Directors 4.
on 26 April 2010, and therefore had not attended any meeting of the

Board held prior to that date.

WEHEERENFELIN T —FFMOA A%
ZERES ALY ELFENZESM2ESTSEH -

5. Mr. Tan Boon Pin Simon was appointed as Director on 23 August 2010, 5. WXH/%EF\—‘? S NEI= TL EZ&?EEﬁ%
and therefore had not attended any meeting of the Board held prior the AN EEFERZBPAZESE SR
date.

6. Dr. Chen Xiaowei was appointed as Director on 23 August 2010 and 6. BRETR_E—ZEFN\AT=ZBREZERES "

resigned on 9 September 2010.
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At least 14 days' prior notice to the date of the meeting of the Board
was given to all Directors and an agenda together with Board papers
and materials were sent to all Directors no less than three days before
the date of the Board meeting. All Directors were given opportunity to
include in the agenda any other matters that they would like to discuss
in the meeting. The Board committees also adopted and followed the
foregoing procedures for the Board committee meetings. All Directors
and Board committee members were urged to attend the Board
meeting and the Board committee meeting in person. If any Director or
Board committee member was unable to attend any such meeting in
person, participation through electronic means had been arranged and
made available to such Director and Board committee member.

If a Director has a potential conflict of interest in a matter being
considered in the Board meeting, the Director having such potential
interest in the matter shall abstain from voting. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest was present at such
meeting to deal with such conflict of interest issues.

The company secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department and the chief financial officer of the Company (after the
resignation of Mr. Cheung Wing Leung as company secretary with
effect from 12 October 2009 and before the appointment of Mr. Yuen
Kwok On as company secretary on 26 April 2010) prepared and kept
detailed minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting
and, within a reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes
were circulated to all Directors for comment and the final and approved
version of the minutes was sent to all Directors for their records. The
Board committees had also adopted and followed the same practices
and procedures as used in the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the total number of
independent non-executive Directors met the minimum number as
required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. Upon the resignation
of Mr. Masahito Tachikawa which took effect on 26 April 2010, the
Board appointed Ms. Wong Sze Wing as the independent non-executive
Directors on the same day. The Company had been fulfilled the
requirement as to the minimum number of independent non-executive
Directors as required under note 1 to code provision A.3 of the CG
Code and Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has received from each independent non-executive Director
a written confirmation of his/her independence and the Board considers
all of them to be independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except for (i) Ms. Wu Keyan
who is the sister of Mr. Wu Kebo; (i) Mr. Li Pei Sen who is the associate
chairman of Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding
Company Limited (a company which is 80% owned by Mr. Wu Kebo);
(iii) the interests of Mr. Chang Tat Joel in the shares of which Mr. Wu
Kebo is interested as set out in the paragraphs headed “Directors and
Chief Executives’ interests and short positions in Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures” and “Substantial Shareholders” and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”
in the section headed “Report of the Directors” in this annual report,
there is no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among members of the Board.

ErgeanNERe g i iis TaBESRO T
BEREAM TREFEEZAMRL=AR2EE
EREFIRERGHAXMERER - 2REZFHINER
ANAREERERA LR ZEMER - EELE T
RAMCANAEZRE SRR IR - 2BESNE
FZEgREARFEFESSRESREgER (£
MEFSESTZReRNBERERILEZSEH %
EEFERNEFLEENETBRELHZET A A2H

St
B

HMEFREES SR w2 ETREFEENRER A
REBABRENGRZESTARERSE  ABFESHRML
BMNREREIIFNTES  BEXFIEERER -

RAMESRARWERNE TRARRFBEE (ERKR
EERZTENETAT_ABEARNWEERERE
ZHREN-Z—ZFNA -+ RABZER/RRMER)
AERAEABETEREFEERNREFZREERZH
MEmtE YNERERRLAERMAARNEZEES
BHgRLHNR  UHESRHER  MEILHER
REREZIRAE R REBER(ECH - EFERE G
ERARSREEESARAZBERTERMERF -

REBEZZ—ZF+_A=+—HIEFE BIIFHRT
EFREME ETRAUE3I0NERE LB FR - 7
NEAXRER-Z—FFWA - +REBE ARFR
FEZEENRALEIRBEIIFNTES  TEEEER
SF RIS A3 {5 ST BIGSTRT RE 1 e £ AR B 58 3.10(1) 6 38
TEIFRTESZRIEABRE

EEgERERBIFNTESHREZBLSNH 2 E
HER BEFERE RELTRUFE3 3G 288
SIETESEHEBEAL

BARBIFTRA - B ()RR Ah R EZ Mk
(NVFEREERBRBZRRE(EE) AR AR (A
FEWEE 80% M AR ZHAEER : (i) AFHM =
FemE | B [EEREETHASNEL - HEKH
MEFzEaloRR ] R [ EERRREMATRERL &
R 2 e AR | SRMFIE - SR EERED
RREEREERANROPNERI)  EEEXEML
EEATS - E5 REIEMBER BERRE -

56 ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2010



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERERE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wu Kebo, is responsible for providing
leadership of the Board and ensuring all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at the Board meeting. In addition, he is charged with
the duty to ensure that Directors receive in timely manner adequate,
complete and reliable information in relation to the Group’s affairs.
The Chairman also encourages Directors to actively participate in and
to make a full contribution to the Board so that the Board functions
effectively and acts in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin was appointed by the Board as the CEO of
the Company with effect from 22 September 2009. He was focusing
on strategic planning and assessment of mergers and acquisitions
opportunities for the Company. Following the appointment of Mr.
Wu King Shiu Kelvin as the CEO of the Company, the requirement
under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as to the separate roles of
Chairman and CEO was fulfilled.

Save for the interests of Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin in the shares of which
Mr. Wu Kebo is interested as set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares or debentures” in the section “Report of the Directors” in this
annual report, there is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Company’s Bye-laws,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a specific
term. In the Board meeting and Board committee meeting in which
constructive views and comments of the non-executive Directors are
given, the non-executive Directors provides independent judgment on
the issues relating to the strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2004 and
has formulated its written terms of reference in accordance with
code provision B.1.3 of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises one executive Director, being Mr. Wu Kebo, and
two independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Leung Man Kit and
Ms. Wong Sze Wing. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendation to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration packages of all
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the Directors and senior management of the Company according to
its terms of reference, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for the
loss or termination of their office or appointment. The remuneration of
the Directors and senior management of the Company is determined
by reference to factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and senior
management, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is required to consult the Chairman of
the Board regarding the remuneration of the executive Directors and
members of the Remuneration Committee have access to professional
advice on remuneration of executive Directors if considered necessary.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2010 to review and make recommendation to the
Board on the Directors’ fees of all the existing non-executive Directors
and to review the remuneration package of all existing executive
Directors and senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee also reviewed and approved the terms of service contracts
of the executive Directors, and the granting of share options to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company pursuant
to the share option scheme of the Company. The composition of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December 2010
and the attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee to
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

2RI ELRAAXNZEHS  EERTREEA
BNHZBERBE  ARESBRZ BEGERER
BHBFM IR ZERRESERMETE

FHEERARSITESRFMER RS HEME
EERIHELERUR(ANE) RETES 2 FMA
KEEER -

FHEREENEBE_ T TF T _A=1t—"RLFEE
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BB RIERITERE ZREE DEFTIARBEAR
AABEREASNARTATEERSREEAERRD
BRE - MBE-Z-ZF+-_A=1+—RIFEHMH
REGZHAREFHREENELEREGER BN
LU

Meetings Attended/
Members Eligible to Attend
BHEAEK
B8 HEEE
Wu Kebo h5eK 2/2
Leung Man Kit 2R 22
Wong Sze Wing (Note 2) =HTE (ME2) 2/2
Masahito Tachikawa (Note 1) SINIEA (BfaE1) 0/0
Notes: it -
1. Mr. Masahito Tachikawa has resigned as an independent non-executive 1. TN EAEBIEBENTEERAATEHES S
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect RE B-T—ZTHENA -+ BHRAEN FEdEY
from 26 April 2010 and therefore had not attended any meeting of the FERZARG s THESees o
Remuneration Committee after that date.
2. Ms. Wong Sze Wing was appointed to such positions with effect from 2. EH AL+ RETESAERE A2 —Z&1mA

26 April 2010 and therefore had not attended any meeting of the
Remuneration Committee prior to that date.

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements on page 99 of this annual report.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-laws to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or,
subject to authorisation by the members at the general meeting, as an
additional member of the Board. The selection criteria are mainly based
on the professional qualifications and experience of the candidate.
Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
who has been appointed by the Board must retire and be subject to re-
election at the first general meeting after his/her appointment. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Board reviews regularly its
composition to ensure a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2010, the Board reviewed the qualification
and experience requirement of the candidate so as to cope with the
Company's development and business expansion.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the fees paid/payable to the
Group's auditors, Messrs. KPMG, are set out as follows:

Services Rendered

FriR AR 3%

E R
FEERRY

Audit Services
Non-audit services

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a going
concern basis. It is also responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual/interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures. Management of the
Company provides all relevant information and records so as to enable
the Board to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board established an audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) on 9 October 1998 and formulated
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee’s
members comprised two independent non-executive Directors and
one non-executive Director, being Mr. Leung Man Kit (who also acts as
the chairman), Mr. Huang Shao-Hua George and Ms. Wong Sze Wing
which is appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2010, three Audit Committee
meetings were convened and the individual attendance of the members
of the Audit Committee is set out as follows:

Members

RE

Leung Man Kit (Chairman) REG(FE)
Huang Shao-Hua George mHAHE

Wong Sze Wing =HTRE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget) and risk management as delegated by the
Board and making recommendation to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditors for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group
and discussed and reviewed financial reporting matters including
the interim and audited financial statements. In addition, the Audit
Committee also reviewed the engagement of the external auditors
and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems and made recommendations to the
Board. There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment or resignation of the external
auditors.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members and at least one
of whom is an independent non-executive director with appropriate
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare the financial
statements in each financial year with supports from the finance
department of the Company and to ensure that the relevant accounting
policies are observed and the accounting standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants are complied with in the
preparation of such financial statements and to report the financial
affairs of the Company in a true and fair manner.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 63 to 64 of this annual report.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system with the aim at (i) safeguarding the
Group's assets against unauthorised use or disposition; (i) maintaining
proper accounting records and (iii) ensuring compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. The internal control system of the Group
comprises a well-established organisation structure and comprehensive
policies and standards. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management function for the year ended
31 December 2010, where some findings have been identified and
reported to the Board. There are no material internal control deficiencies
that may affect the shareholders of the Company have come to the
attention of the Audit Committee or the Board. The Directors are of the
opinion that the Company has complied with code provision C.2.1 on
internal controls as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16 August
2010 (the “Announcement”), the Company will, amongst others,
appoint professional advisors to conduct a risk assessment and review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system and corporate
governance of the Group. The Company has appointed professional
advisors (being one of the largest international accounting firms),
conducting, amongst the others, review of the Group's internal control
procedures and corporate governance matters, particularly on the
impact of the Proceedings (as defined in the Announcement) on the
operation of the Group, and making the relevant recommendations to
the Company. The professional advisors has reported to the Committee
(as defined in the Announcement) that the Proceedings did not have
material impact on the operation of the Group and there were no
material internal control deficiencies being revealed that may affect the
shareholders of the Company. Besides, the professional advisors has
recommended to the Committee certain additional measures that may
assist to strengthen and perfect the internal control procedures of the
Group. The Board has adopted these recommendations as reported by
the Committee. The Company has taken steps in implementing these
recommendations.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a policy of disclosing clear and relevant
information to the shareholders of the Company in timely manner. The
general meeting(s) of the Company provides a forum for communication
between shareholders of the Company and Directors.

Review of the general meeting proceedings had been carried out by
the Board from time to time so as to ensure that the Company had
followed the best corporate governance practices. Notice of the general
meeting together with the circular setting out details of each of the
proposed resolutions (including procedures for demanding a poll where
required under the CG Code), voting procedures and other relevant
information were delivered to all the shareholders of the Company with
sufficient notice as required under the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws
of the Company before the date appointed for the general meeting. At
the commencement of the general meeting, procedures for demanding
where required and conducting a poll were explained by the chairman
of the meeting to the shareholders of the Company and the votes cast
were properly counted and recorded by the scrutineer appointed by
the Company. Poll results of the general meeting were posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the day of the
general meeting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

By HENERE

lcnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orange Sky
Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 65 to 140,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

By HENERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

31 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(restated)
Continuing operations
Turnover 48&5 1,077,533 1,230,904
Cost of sales (449,345) (543,662)
Gross profit 628,188 687,242
Other revenue 6(a) 15,538 12,629
Other net income/(expenses) 6(b) 48,776 (5,833)
Selling and distribution costs (474,383) (547,358)
General and administrative expenses (101,838) (83,406)
Other operating expenses (16,386) (7,227)
Profit from operations 99,895 56,047
Finance costs 7@) (4,997) (2,505)
Gain on disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity 7(d) — 61,852
Profit before taxation 94,898 115,394
Income tax 8@) (22,511) (20,484)
Profit for the year/period from continuing operations 7 72,387 94,910
Discontinued operation — jointly controlled entity held for sale
Profit for the year/period from discontinued operation 7(d) — 1,198
Total profit for the year/period 72,387 96,108
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Note HK$000 HK$'000
(restated)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 70,823 95,542
Non-controlling interests 1,564 566
Profit for the year/period 72,387 96,108
Dividends attributable to equity holders of the Company 12 — 18,327
Earnings per share 13
Basic
— Continuing operations 2.84 cents 5.10 cents
— Discontinued operation — 0.06 cents
2.84 cents 5.16 cents
Diluted
— Continuing operations 2.78 cents 5.09 cents
— Discontinued operation — 0.06 cents
2.78 cents 5.15 cents
The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Profit for the year/period 72,387 96,108
Other comprehensive income for the year/period:
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of:
Overseas subsidiaries 6,715 (4,475)
Overseas jointly controlled entities 22,913 (14,668)
29,628 (19,143)
Realisation of exchange reserve on disposals of:
An overseas subsidiary (1,062) —
An overseas jointly controlled entity — (4,781)
(1,062) (4,781)
Available-for-sale equity securities:
Deficit on revaluation (13,727) —
Impairment loss recognised 17(a) 13,727 —
Net movement in the investment revaluation reserve — =
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 100,953 72,184
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 98,894 71,724
Non-controlling interests 2,059 460
Total comprehensive income for the year/period 100,953 72,184
Note: There is no tax effect relating to the above components of the comprehensive income.
The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Note HK$000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Fixed assets 14 681,465 395,055
Loan to a joint venture partner 16(b) — 5,357
Available-for-sale equity securities 17 246,083 1,500
Prepaid rental 30,435 5,592
Club memberships 2,490 2,490
Rental and other deposits 63,809 56,214
Trademarks 18 79,785 79,421
Goodwill 19 73,658 28,538
Deferred tax assets 28(b) 3,095 420
Pledged bank deposits 23 29,476 25,038
1,210,296 599,625
Current assets
Inventories 20 3,480 2,461
Film rights 21 85,870 75,955
Trade receivables 22(a) 32,996 36,789
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 22(b) 86,016 91,844
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 16(a) 1,273 1,683
Pledged bank deposits 23 — 5,425
Deposits and cash 23 457,677 517,803
Derivative financial asset 17(b) 246 —
667,558 731,960
Current liabilities
Bank loans 24 21,363 24,201
Trade payables 25(a) 86,264 97,498
Other payables and accrued charges 25(b) 148,627 73,847
Deferred revenue 25(c) 96,911 71,987
Taxation payable 28(a) 34,884 23,103
388,049 290,636
Net current assets 279,509 441,324
Total assets less current liabilities 1,489,805 1,040,949
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 24 82,400 62,732
Convertible note 26 6,662 6,150
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 27 — 5,357
Deposits received 5,318 4,887
Deferred tax liabilities 28(b) 19,623 13,868
114,003 92,994
NET ASSETS 1,375,802 947,955
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29
Share capital 254,374 219,974
Reserves 1,109,874 726,100
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 1,364,248 946,074
Non-controlling interests 11,554 1,881
TOTAL EQUITY 1,375,802 947,955
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2011
Wu Kebo Chang Tat Joel
Director Director
The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

at 31 December 2010

2010 2009

Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Non-current asset
Interestin subsidiaries S 1,192,593 - 876,030
Current assets
Amount due from a subsidiary 15 1,560 1,560
Prepayments 439 560
Deposits and cash 23 258 278
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 2,257
Current liabilities
Payables and accrued charges 435 861
e N . . 1822 . 1557
Total assets less current liabilities 1,194,815 877,567
Non-current liability
Convertible note 26 6,662 6,150
NET ASSETS 1,188,153 871,417
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29
Share capital 254,374 219,974
Reserves 933,779 651,443
TOTAL EQUITY 1,188,153 871,417
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2011

Wu Kebo Chang Tat Joel

Director Director

The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Equity
component
Share  Capital of Non-
Share Share option redemption Contributed convertible Revaluation ~ Reserve Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  surplus note  reserve funds  reserve profits Total interests Total
Note HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
At 1January 2010 219974 349,284 2474 6,422 80,000 2,874 4,024 2617 3759 274646 946,074 1,881 947,95
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests — — — — — — — — — — (878) (878)
Acquisition of a subsidiary — — — — — — — — — — 13 13
Contribution from non-controlling interests — — — — — — — — — — 8379 8379
Exercise of share options 29@)(v) 400 1,745 (465) — — — — — — 1,680 — 1,680
Transfer to retained profits on lapse of
share options 29@)(v) — — (267) — — — — — 267 — — —
Equity-settled share-based transactions 29@)(v) — — 3773 — — — — — — 3773 — 3773
Placing of shares 29a)(iv) 34,000 279,827 — — — — — — — 313827 — 313827
Transfer tof(from) reserves - - - — — - (4,024) 4,837 — 813) - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — — — — 28,071 70,823 98,894 2,059 100,953
At 31 December 2010 254374 630,856 5515 6,422 80,000 2,874 7454 31,830 344923 1,364,248 11,554 1,375,802
Exchange
Equity reserve of
component ajointly
Share  Capital of controlled Non-
Share Share  option redemption Contributed convertible Reval Reserve  Surplus Exchange Retained entity held controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  surplus notes  reserve funds  reserve  reserve  profits  forsale Total interests Total
Note  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
At 1July 2008 169,638 179,062 1,548 6,422 80,000 242 4,024 1,866 480 227% 19,876 4781 667,735 1421 669,156
Dividends declared and paid 12 — — — — — — — — — — (18327 —  (18327) —  (18327)
Exercise of share options 29()(v) 100 409 (116) — - — — — — - — — 393 — 393
Transfer to retained profits on lapse of
share options 29)(v) — — (826) — — — — — = = 826 = = = =
Equity-settled share-based transactions 29()fy) - - 1,868 - - - — - - - - — 1,868 - 1,868
Placing of shares 29@)ii) 36,600 152,068 — — — — — — — — — — 188,668 — 188,668
Conversion of convertible notes 13,636 17,745 — — — (242) — — — — — - 31139 - 31139
Issuance of convertible note 26 — - — — — 2874 — — — — — — 2874 — 2874
Transfer to/(from) reserves — — — — — — — 751 (480) — 271 - — — —
Total comprehensive income for the period — — — — — — — — —  (19037) 95542 @781 71,724 460 72,184
At 31 December 2009 219974 309284 2474 6422 80000 2874 404 2617 — 370 274686 — o604 1881 947955
The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation
— Continuing operations 94,898 115,394
— Discontinued operation — 1,815
Adjustments for:
Interest income (2,733) (5,744)
Finance costs 7(a) 4,997 2,629
Depreciation of fixed assets 14 68,188 71,566
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 7(c) 2,789 5,743
Gain on disposal of investment property 7(c) — (3,317)
Gain on disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity 7(d) — (61,852)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries 34(d) (11,317) (334)
Loss on disposals of club memberships — 177
Fair value gain on financial derivative instrument 17(b) (8.496) —
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity security 17@) 13,727 —
Impairment losses on film rights 21 4,056 —
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 3,773 1,868
Film royalty income — (1,500)
Impairment losses on trade receivables 22(a)(ii) — 237
Exchange (gain)/loss, net (789) 1,563
Operating profit before changes in working capital 169,093 128,245
Increase in inventories (878) (501)
Increase in film rights (13,971) (14,115)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2,525 (7,832)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, deposits and prepayments 613 (37,602)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables (13,525) 12,466
Increase in other payables and accrued charges 27,742 3,005
Increase in deferred revenue 23,775 9,995
Decrease in prepaid rental 1,109 2,423
Decrease in rental and other deposits (7,432) (2,260)
Cash generated from operations 189,051 93,824
Interest received 3,051 6,050
Finance costs paid (4,527) (2,123)
Overseas tax paid (15,125) (14,119)
Overseas tax refunded 4,581 —
Net cash generated from operating activities 177,031 83,632
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Investing activities
Payment for the purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 (307,606) (122,815)
Payment for trademarks (364) —
Payment for purchase of:
— available-for-sale equity securities (256,828) —
— convertible note (1,719) —
Proceeds from entering an option agreement 17(b) 8,250 —
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment 347 1,228
Proceeds from disposal of investment property — 5,133
Proceeds from disposals of club memberships — 923
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposals of subsidiaries 34(d) 18,618 (1,641)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 34 (36,960) (33,739)
Net proceeds from disposal of interest in a jointly controlled entity — 124,716
Payment (to)/from jointly controlled entities (4,947) 59,691
Repayment from/(to) joint venture partners 5,357 (70,006)
Increase in deposits received 431 639
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 987 (20,330)
Net cash used in investing activities (574,434) (56,201)
Financing activities
Advance of new bank loans 38,909 97,927
Repayment of bank loans (29,297) (36,404)
Repayment of loan from non-controlling interests — (696)
Proceeds from placing of shares 29(a) 313,827 188,668
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares under share option scheme 1,680 393
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company 12 — (18,327)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (878) —
Net cash generated from financing activities 324,241 231,561
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (73,162) 258,992
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 517,803 266,307
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 13,036 (7,496)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 23 457,677 517,803

Major non-cash transaction

The purchase consideration for the acquisition of a subsidiary during the eighteen months ended 31 December 2009 comprised cash

and issuance of convertible note as set out in note 34(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2010, addition of fixed assets of HK$9,120,000 was resulted from the capital contribution of non-

controlling interests.

The notes on pages 74 to 140 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

74

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) consist of worldwide film and video distribution, film exhibition in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore, films and television programmes production, provision of advertising and consultancy services in Mainland China. The
other particulars and principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 38(a) to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 6 January 2009, the Company changed its financial year end date from
30 June to 31 December. The current financial period covers the year ended 31 December 2010 and the comparative figures in
these financial statements cover the eighteen months ended 31 December 2009. Accordingly, the comparative figures for the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes are not comparable with those of the current year. Further
details are set out in note 2 to the financial statements of the 2009 annual report.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance
(i)  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"”) and Interpretations (“HK(Int)s”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

(ii)  Changes in accounting policies
The HKICPA has issued the following new and revised HKFRSs, a number of amendments to HKFRSs and new
Interpretations that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about financial instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

Amendment to HKAS 17 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements

HK(Int 5) Presentation of financial statements — classification by the borrower

of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

(@) Statement of compliance (continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impact of the above developments on the financial statements is as follows:

(ii)

(a)

HKAS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of financial statements

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised), details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity holders in their capacity as such have been presented separately from all
other income and expenses in a revised consolidated statement of changes in equity. All other items of
income and expenses are presented in the consolidated income statement, if they are recognised as part
of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The new format for the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity has been adopted in these consolidated financial statements
and corresponding amounts have been restated to conform to current period’s presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and expense or net assets for any of the
periods presented.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business combinations and Amendments to HKAS 27 — Consolidated and separate
financial statements

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), any business combination acquired on or after 1 January
2010 will be recognised in accordance with the new requirements and detailed guidance contained in HKFRS
3 (Revised).

As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from 1 January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary will be allocated between the controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion to
their interests in that entity, even if this results in a deficit balance within consolidated equity being attributed
to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if the allocation of losses to the non-controlling interests would
have resulted in a deficit balance, the losses were only allocated to the non-controlling interests if the non-
controlling interests were under a binding obligation to make good the losses. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKAS 27, this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) — Improving disclosures about financial instruments

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7, the financial statements include expanded
disclosures about the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial instruments, categorising these fair
value measurements into a three-level fair value hierarchy according to the extent to which they are based
on observable market data. The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments to HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for the newly required disclosures about the
fair value measurements of financial instruments has not been provided.

HKFRS 8 — Operating segments

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way the Group’s chief operating decision maker
regards and manages the Group, with the amounts reported for each reportable segment being the
measures reported to the Group'’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and making decisions about operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior periods which was based on a disaggregation of the Group's financial statements into
segments based on related activities and on geographical areas. The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the
presentation of segment information in a manner that is more consistent with internal reporting provided
to the Group’s senior executive management. Corresponding amounts have been provided on a basis
consistent with the revised segment information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(@) Statement of compliance (continued)

(i)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(e) HKAS 17 — Leases
The improvements to HKFRSs 2009 consist of further amendments to existing standards, including
amendments to HKAS 17 Leases. The amendment to HKAS 17 requires the land element of long-term leases
to be classified as a finance lease rather than an operating lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership. This amendment did not have significant financial impact to the Group'’s results and
financial position.

(f) HK(Int 5) — Presentation of financial statements — classification by the borrower of a Term Loan that
contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
In November 2010 the HKICPA issued HK(Int 5) — Presentation of financial statements — classification by
the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand clause. This Interpretation is effective
immediately on issuance and sets out the conclusion reached by the HKICPA that a term loan which contains
a clause which gives the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at any time should be classified
as a current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements,
irrespective of the probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause. The issuance of HK(Int 5)
have had no material impact on the Group's financial statements as the amendment and the Interpretation’s
conclusions were consistent with policies already adopted by the Group.

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs and the amendments and
considered that there was no significant impact to the Group’s results and financial position for current and prior
periods.

The Group has not early applied the new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective (note 37).

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and the
Group's share of the financial statements of the Group’s jointly controlled entities for the year ended 31 December
2010. The results of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are consolidated and proportionately consolidated,
respectively, from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control and joint control, and
continue to be consolidated and proportionately consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as available-for-sale (see note 3(g)); and
—  derivative financial instruments (see note 3(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 35.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(9]

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidate statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in accordance with notes 3(s), (t) or (u) depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 3(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity (see note 3(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (note

3(n)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(d) Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is an entity set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties undertake
an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the other parties
have an interest.

(e)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the venturers,
either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a)

(b)

©

a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company (note 3(c));

a jointly controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly,
over the joint venture company (note 3(e)(i));

an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture company'’s registered capital and is in a position to exercise significant influence over
the joint venture company (note 3(e)(ii)); or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to
exercise significant influence over, the joint venture company.

Jointly controlled entities and associates

0)

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual arrangement between the Group and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that the Group and one or more of the other parties
share joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the
proportionate consolidation method, unless it is classified as held for sale (note 3(dd)). The Group combines its
share of the joint ventures’ individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line
basis with similar items in the Group’s financial statements. The Group recognises the portion of gains and losses
on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that is attributable to the other venturers. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint venture that result from the Group’s purchase of assets
from the joint venture until it resells the assets to an independent party. However, a loss on the transaction is
recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets, or
an impairment loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained
in that former investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 3(g) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate (see note 3(e)(ii)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(e)

()

Jointly controlled entities and associates (continued)
(i) An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (see note 3(dd)). Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition
change in the Group'’s share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any
impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group's share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's interest in the associate is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

(i) Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree, over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination and is tested annually for impairment (note 3(n)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(9)

(h)

()

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only data from observable markets.
Cost includes attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, investments in debt and equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the statement
of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note 3(n)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Investment properties
Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (note 3(n)). Any gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described in note 3(aa)(vi).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives which are within
the unexpired term of lease on a straight-line basis. The useful lives of investment properties are reviewed annually.

Property, plant and equipment
The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note 3(n)):

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, classified as held under operating leases (note
3(m)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment, other than construction in progress.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured realisably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset or as a replacement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

()

(k)

(M

(m)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 2.0%-6.7%
—  Leasehold improvements Over the remaining terms of leases
—  Machinery and equipment 6.5%-20.0%
—  Furniture and fixtures 8.3%-20.0%
— Motor vehicles 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. On disposal or retirement, the attributable revaluation surplus not previously dealt with
in retained profits is transferred directly to retained profits.

Construction in progress represents an asset under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Club memberships
Club memberships are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note 3(n)). Cost includes
fees and expenses directly related to the acquisition of the club memberships.

Any gain or loss arising from disposal of club memberships is recognised in profit or loss.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment losses (note 3(n)). Intangible assets are
not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following exception:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot be measured separately from
the fair value of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(m) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

(n) Impairment of assets

0}

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
—  abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect
on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

0}

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade and other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities (including those recognised using the
equity method (see note 3(e)(ii))), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note 3(n)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 3(n)(ii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where financial assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(n)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

fixed assets;
trademarks;

club memberships;
film rights; and

goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using a first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the year the write-down of loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the year in which the
reversal occurs.

Film rights

(i) Film rights
Film rights represent films and television drama series and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 3(n)).

Amortisation of film rights is charged to profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income earned during the
year to the total estimated income from the sale of film rights.

(ii)  Film production in progress
Film production in progress represents films under production and are stated at cost less any impairment losses (note
3(n)). Costs include all direct costs associated with the production of films. Impairment losses are made for costs
which are in excess of the expected future revenue generated by these films. Costs are transferred to self-produced
programmes upon completion.

(iii)  Self-produced programmes
Self-produced programmes are stated at cost, comprising direct expenditure and an attributable portion of direct
production overheads, less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (note 3(n)). Amortisation is charged
to the profit or loss based on the proportion of actual income and earned during the year to the total estimated
income from the sale of the self-produced programmes.

(iv) Investments in film/drama production
Investments in film/drama production are stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net income derived
from the investments, and less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(n)).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (note 3(n)) except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (note 3(n)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 3(z)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would be received at that time do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments which contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible notes is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the liability
component is recognised as the equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest method. The equity component of the convertible note is
recognised in a capital reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained profits.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

—  therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

—  the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

—  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)
(w) Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(x)

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of reporting period is permitted to
be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and
carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required number of years of service to the Group in order to
be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Employment Ordinance”)
in the event of the termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the circumstances specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long service payments expected to be made. The
provision is based on the best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned by the employees
from their services to the Group to the end of reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(x) Employee benefits (continued)

(v)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions to the Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions are fully and immediately vested with the employees when contributed to the Scheme. The assets of
the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are members
of the state-sponsored retirement scheme (the “State Scheme"”) operated by the PRC government. Contributions to
the State Scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they became payable in accordance with the rules of the State Scheme.

(y) Income tax

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences arising
from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(y) Income tax (continued)

(iv)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities if, and only if, the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or
—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(z) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

0]

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction price, unless
the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 3(z)ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(aa)

(bb)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Income from box office takings is recognised when the services have been rendered to the buyers;
(ii) Income from film distribution and screen advertising is recognised at the time when the services are provided;

(i) Income from promotion, advertising production and agency fee and consultancy service is recognised upon the
provision of the services;

(iv)  Income from investments in film/drama production is recognised when the films or television programmes are
released for distribution;

(v) Income from confectionery sales and audio visual sales is recognised, at the point of sales when the confectionery
and audio visual products are given to the customers;

(vi)  Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned;

(vii)  Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method;

(viii)  Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established;

(ix)  Income from tickets booking is recognised upon the provision of the services;

(x) Income from gift vouches purchases is recognised when customers exchange them for goods/services or upon
expiry; and

(xi)  Income from membership fee is recognised in profit or loss in the accounting period covered by the membership
terms.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except for those arising from the translation of the financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities which are taken directly to the exchange reserve.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity which relate
to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(co)

(dd)

(ee)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented on the face of the income statement, which
comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member
of such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that
is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conmivuep)

(ff) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of operating
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distributed the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the income from the sale of film, video and television rights, film and TV drama distribution, theatre
operation, advertising agency fees earned, consultancy fee income, and proceeds from the sale of audio visual products.

The Group's customer lease is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenues. Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from customers are set out in note 30(a).

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by geography. Upon its first time adoption of HKFRS 8, Operating segments and in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the reportable segments, which are as follows:

— Hong Kong

—  Mainland China
—  Taiwan

—  Singapore

The results of the Group’s revenue from external customers for entities located in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan and
Singapore are set out in the table below.

Each of the above reportable segment primarily derive their revenue from film exhibition, film and video distribution, film and
television programme production, provision of advertising and consultancy services. For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive management monitors the revenue and
results attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment revenue and results

Revenue is allocated to the reporting segment based on the local entities’ location of external customers. Expenses are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
geographical location or which otherwise arise from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is operating profit after tax.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning operating profit after tax, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue.

Management evaluates performance primarily based on operating profit including the proportionate consolidated results of
jointly controlled entities of each segment. Inter-segment pricing is generally determined at arm’s length basis.
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Segment revenue and results (continued)
Segment information regarding the Group's revenue and results by geographical market is presented below:

Year ended 31 December 2010/Eighteen months ended 31 December 2009

Hong Kong Mainland China Taiwan Singapore Consolidated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
Segment revenue

Revenue from external customers
Exhibition 216,428 263342 187,283 120,666 288,901 353,764 298249 386,648 990,861 1,124,420
Distribution and production 56,378 106,612 54,200 37,980 8,731 7,953 8,608 34,091 127,917 186,636
Corporate 2,236 2,858 — — — — — — 2,236 2,858
Reportable segment revenue 275,042 372,812 241,483 158,646 297,632 361,717 306,857 420,739 1,121,014 1,313,914

Reconciliation — Revenue

Reportable segment revenue 1,121,014 1,313,914
Elimination of intersegmental revenue (21,151)  (58,209)
Other revenue (5,613) (1,775)
Others (16,717)  (23,026)

1,077,533 1,230,904

Reconciliation — profit before

taxation
Reportable profit from external

customers 91,198 93,454
Unallocated operating

(income)/expenses, net (20,375) 2,022
Non-controlling interests 1,564 (566)
Income tax 22,511 20,484
Profit before taxation 94,898 115,394
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94

(a) Other revenue

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000

(restated)

Continuing operations

Interest income from bank deposits 2,733 5,576
Interest income on loan to a jointly controlled entity — 142
Miscellaneous income 12,805 6,911
15,538 12,629

Discontinued operation — 310
15,538 12,939

(b) Other net income/(expenses)

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

Gain on settlement of a claim (note) 26,761 —
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note 34(d)) 11,317 —
Exchange gain/(loss), net 10,698 (5,833)
48,776 (5,833)

Note:

Included in the other net income was a gain on settlement of a claim and provision of consultancy service of HK$26,761,000 as set out

below.

During the eighteen months ended 31 December 2009, a subsidiary of the Group was engaged in litigation for breach of lease agreement
and claim for damages against a landlord (the “Landlord”) in Mainland China. On 14 January 2010, the Group reached a settlement
agreement with the Landlord and received a sum of RMB28,800,000 (approximately HK$33,120,000) in February 2010 (before deducting
incidental expenses) in respect of the settlement and the provision of consultancy service. The net sum of approximately HK$26,761,000
and corresponding tax expense of approximately HK$5,300,000 have been credited and charged to the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2010 respectively. The obligations of both the Group and the Landlord in respect of the lease were discharged

and the legal claim against the Landlord was dismissed accordingly.
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7 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

Profit for the year/period is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
(@) Finance costs
Continuing operations
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
— within five years 3,494 2,105
— after five years 991 —
4,485 2,105
Interest on convertible notes (note 26) 512 172
Interest on loans from joint venture partners — 228
4,997 2,505
Discontinuing operation
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years — 124
4,997 2,629
(b) Staff costs (excluding directors’ emoluments (note 9))
Salaries, wages and other benefits (note (i) 133,507 143,180
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 5,738 3,096
Equity-settled share-based payments 859 985
140,104 147,261
()  Otheritems
Cost of inventories 30,637 38,517
Cost of services provided (note (i) 385,655 463,070
Depreciation of fixed assets 68,188 71,566
Amortisation of film rights (note (iii)) 33,053 42,075
Auditors’ remuneration 2,800 2,875
Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
— minimum lease payments 157,772 193,588
— contingent rentals 28,186 34,490
Impairment losses
— an available-for-sale equity security (note 17(a)) (note (iv)) 13,727 —
— trade receivables (note 22(a)) — 237
— film rights (note 21) 4,056 —
Fair value gain on financial derivative instrument (note 17(b)) (note (iv)) (8,496) —
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 2,789 5,743
Gain on disposal of investment property — (3,317)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (11,317) —
Rental income less direct outgoings (13,528) (16,635)
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD (conrinuep)

(d)

Notes:
(i) The amount includes provision for long service payments.

(ii) The cost of services provided includes approximately HK$Nil (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$931,000) relating to
staff costs which is also included in the amount disclosed above.

(iii) The amortisation of film rights for the year/period is included in “Cost of sales” in consolidated income statement.

(iv) The impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity security and fair value gain on financial derivative instrument had been included
in the other operating expenses.

Jointly controlled entity classified as held for sale and disposal of interest in jointly controlled entity

On 13 February 2008, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of its entire 50% equity interests in TGV Cinemas
Sdn Bhd (“TGV") to its then existing shareholder (the “Transaction”). Details of the Transaction were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 5 March 2008. TGV is principally engaged in theatre operation in Malaysia.

The disposal of TGV was completed on 31 July 2008 and resulted in a net gain of HK$61,852,000 which was credited to
the consolidated income statement for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2009. The Group's share of results of
TGV has been reclassified and presented as discontinued operation in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current assets held
for sale and discontinued operations.

Eighteen
months ended
31 December

2009

HK$'000

Turnover 13,674
Cost of sales (6,164)
7,510

Other revenue 310
Selling and distribution costs (5,537)
General and administrative expenses (344)
Other operating expenses —
Profit from operations 1,939
Finance costs (124)
Profit before taxation 1,815
Income tax (617)
Profit for the period 1,198
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
Continuing operations
The Group
Current income tax
Provision for overseas tax 8,594 3,284
Over-provision in respect of prior years (932) (59)
7,662 3,225
Deferred tax — overseas (note 28(b))
Origination of temporary differences 1,456 —
9,118 3,225
Jointly controlled entities
Current income tax
Provision for overseas tax 16,412 19,138
Qver-provision in respect of prior years (3,584) —
12,828 19,138
Deferred tax — overseas (note 28(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 565 (1,879)
13,393 17,259
22,511 20,484
Discontinued operation
Current income tax
Provision for overseas tax — 617
22,511 21,101
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (conminuep)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010 is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the
year/period.

The provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax of the subsidiaries established in the PRC is calculated at 25% (2009: 25%) of the
estimated taxable profits for the year/period.

The State Council Notice GuoFa (2007) No. 39 Notice on the Implementation of the Transitional Preferential Corporate Income Tax
Policies (Bl5% (2007)39 55C B 75 B 8 70 B e 1> 3 AT 15 B 8 F B B BR B9 A1) (“Circular 39”), provided a five-year transitional
period effective from 1 January 2008 for those enterprises which were established before 16 March 2007 and which were entitled
to a preferential lower tax rate under the then effective tax laws and regulations. The transitional tax rates are 18%, 20% 22%,
24% and 25% for 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 onwards, respectively. Accordingly, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
located in the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone is subject to income tax at 20% and 22% for 2009 and 2010 respectively.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant countries.

The China tax law imposes a withholding tax at 10% unless reduced by a treaty or agreement, for dividends distributed by a PRC-
resident enterprise to its immediate holding company outside Mainland China for earnings generated beginning on 1 January 2008
and undistributed earnings generated prior to 1 January 2008 are exempt for such withholding tax. As at 31 December 2010, the
Group has not provided for income taxes on accumulated earnings generated by its Mainland China subsidiaries for the eighteen
months ended 31 December 2009 and year ended 31 December 2010 since it is probable that they will not be distributed to its
immediate holding company outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of
additional taxes that might be payable on such undistributed earnings.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has provided HK$4,184,000 (2009: HK$Nil) for income taxes on accumulated earnings
generated by its jointly controlled entity in Taiwan which will be distributed to the Group in the foreseeable future.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and profit before taxation at applicable tax rates:

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
Profit before taxation (including profit from discontinued operation) 94,898 117,209
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned 16,211 20,354
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 10,652 6,861
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (8,309) (10,794)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 7,864 9,417
Tax effect of previously unrecognised prior years’ tax losses utilised
this year/period (3,966) (2,880)
Tax effect of temporary differences unrecognised 680 (1,215)
Effect on deferred tax balance resulting from a change in tax rate (289) (583)
Provision for Taiwan withholding tax for the year/period 4,184 —
Over-provision in prior years (4,516) (59)
Actual tax expense 22,511 21,101
Represented by
— Continuing operations 22,511 20,484
— Discontinued operation — 617
22,511 21,101
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

9 DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:
Eighteen
months ended
Salaries, Retirement Equity-settled Year ended 31 December
Directors’  allowances and scheme share-based 31 December 2009
fees  benefits in kind contributions payments 2010 Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
(Note 5)
Executive directors
WU, Kebo — 869 — 2,450 3,319 2,048
LI, Pei Sen (Note 1) 63 170 — — 233 211
CHANG, Tat Joel (Note 1) — — — 464 464 —
TAN, Boon Pin Simon (Note 1) — 369 — — 369 —
CHEN, Xiaowei (Notes 1 and 3) — 70 — — 70 —
WU, Keyan — 536 12 — 548 888
CHOW, Sau Fong Fiona (Note 2) — 947 8 — 955 2,383
CHOW, Siu Hong (Note 4) — — — — — 140
CHAN, Suet Yin Winnie (Note 4) — — — — — 2,010
WANG, Wei (Note 4) — — — — — 506
SHEN, De Min (Note 4) — — — — — 157
LAU, Pak Keung (Note 4) — — — — — 200
Non-executive directors
KRONFELD, Eric Norman
(Note 4) — — — — — 118
ARAKI, Takashi (Note 4) — — — — — 78
Independent non-executive
directors
LEUNG, Man Kit 323 — — — 323 460
HUANG, Shao-Hua George 230 — — — 230 385
WONG, Sze Wing (Note 1) 166 — — — 166 —
TACHIKAWA, Masahito
(Note 2) 63 — — — 63 181
PRINCE Chatrichalerm Yukol
(Note 4) — — — — — 78
845 2,961 20 2,914 6,740 9,843
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (conminuep)

Notes:

(1) The directors appointed during the year ended 31 December 2010. The amounts for the year represented the remuneration of the directors
from the date of appointment. Mr. Li Pei Sen was re-designated as executive director with effect from 26 April 2010.

(2) The directors resigned during the year ended 31 December 2010. The amounts for the year represented the remuneration of the directors
up to the date of resignation.

(3) Dr. Chen, Xiaowei appointed and resigned during the year ended 31 December 2010. The amounts for the year represented the
remuneration of the director up to the date of resignation.

(4) The directors resigned during the period ended 31 December 2009. The amounts for the period represented the remuneration of the
directors up to the date of resignation.

(5) These represented the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under the Group’s share option schemes. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for equity-settled share-based payment transactions as set out
in note 3(x)(ii).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year/period.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note 29(a)(v).

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, one (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: three) is director whose
emolument is disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other four (eighteen months ended 31
December 2009: two) are as follows:

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 4,954 3,242
Equity-settled share-based payments — 133
Retirement scheme contributions 36 36
4,990 3,411

The emoluments of the four (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are
within the following bands:

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December

2010 2009

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 3 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

11 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company includes a loss of HK$2,544,000 (eighteen months ended
31 December 2009: loss of HK$2,850,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

12 DIVIDENDS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
Special dividend declared and paid of HK$Nil cent per share during the year
(eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$0.01 per share,
as adjusted for the subdivision of shares in 2009 (note 29(a)(ii))) — 18,327

Final dividend declared and paid of HK$Nil per share proposed after the end
of reporting date (2009: HK$Nil per share) — —

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company from
continuing operations and discontinued operation of HK$70,823,000 and HK$Nil respectively (eighteen months ended 31
December 2009: HK$94,344,000 and HK$1,198,000) and the weighted average of 2,492,008,598 ordinary shares (2009:
1,849,886,779 ordinary shares, after adjusting for the subdivision of shares in November 2009) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000

Profit attributable to equity holders
— Continuing operations 70,823 94,344
— Discontinued operation — 1,198
70,823 95,542
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (conminuep)
(a) Basic earnings per share (continued)
(ii)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)

Year ended
31 December
2010
Number of
Shares

Eighteen
months ended
31 December
2009

Number of
Shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2010/1 July 2008 (note)
Effect of convertible notes converted

Effect of new shares placed

Effect of share options exercised

2,199,739,900

289,698,630
2,570,068

1,696,376,270
128,829,270
24,666,667
14,572

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic) at 31 December

2,492,008,598

1,849,886,779

Effect of conversion of convertible note 26,698,224 9,041,909
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s

share option scheme 43,514,212 680,663
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 2,562,221,034 1,859,609,351

Note: The issued ordinary shares at 1 January 2010 and 1 July 2008 have been adjusted retrospectively to reflect the subdivision of

shares (note 29(a)(ii)).

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company from
continuing operations and discontinued operation of HK$71,335,000 and HK$Nil respectively (eighteen months ended
31 December 2009: HK$94,516,000 and HK$1,198,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,562,221,034 shares (2009: 1,859,609,351 shares, after adjusting for the subdivision of shares in November 2009 (note

29(a)(ii)), calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (diluted)

Eighteen
Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
Continuing operations
Profit attributable to equity holders 70,823 94,344
After tax effect of effective interest on the liability component of
convertible notes 512 172
Profit attributable to equity holders (diluted) 71,335 94,516
Discontinued operation
Profit attributable to equity holders — 1,198

The weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are set out in note 13(a)(ii).
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

14 FIXED ASSETS
The Group

Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
Leasehold  Leasehold and Furniture Motor Construction
Buildings land improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles  in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost or valuation:

At 1 January 2010 66,745 64,678 330,705 202,828 38,040 2,688 4,528 710,212

Additions = = 69,991 48,484 5,020 1,556 191,675 316,726
Acquired from subsidiaries — — 12,294 4,390 1,241 196 — 18,121

Transfers — — 2,823 5,275 — — (8,098) —
Disposals — (270) (4,346) (5,122) (1,160) (461) (216) (11,575)
Disposals of subsidiaries — — — (7,504) ?3) — — (7,507)
Exchange adjustments 6,067 5864 21,804 13,305 2,043 83 (99) 49,067

At 31 December 2010 72812 70272 433271 261,656 45,181 4,062 187,790 1,075,044
Representing:

Cost 72,812 70,272 433,271 261,656 45,181 4,062 187,790 1,075,044

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2010 26,522 1,814 159,348 107,552 18,840 1,081 — 315,157
Charge for the year 1,746 792 35,629 24,280 4,826 915 — 68,188
Written back on disposals — (8) (2,745) (4,315) (1,063) (308) — (8,439)
Written back on

disposals of subsidiaries — — — (3,656) — — — (3,656)
Exchange adjustments 2,517 212 10,760 7,694 1,079 67 — 22,329
At 31 December 2010 30,785 2,810 202,992 131,555 23,682 1,755 — 393,579

Net book value:

At 31 December 2010 42,027 67,462 230,279 130,101 21,499 2,307 187,790 681,465
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14 FIXED ASSETS (conminueD)

104

The Group (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Machinery
Leasehold  Leasehold and  Furniture Motor Construction Investment
Buildings land improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles in progress  Sub-total property Total
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

Cost or valuation:
At 1 July 2008 74213 68,726 291,999 162,216 41,840 2,216 4,770 645,980 - 645,980
Additions = = 59,070 40,727 6,501 543 14,974 122,815 = 122,815
Acquired from a subsidiary — — — 545 95 509 — 1,149 — 1,149
Transfers (4,556) — 4,605 10,389 — — (14,994) (4,556) 4,556 —
Disposals - (1,226) (13,637) (7,319) (8,978) (617) — (31,777) (4,556) (36,333)
Exchange adjustments (2,912) (2,822) (11,332) (4,730) (1.418) 37 (222) (23,399 — (23,399)
At 31 December 2009 66,745 64,678 330,705 202,828 38,040 2,688 4528 710212 — 710,212
Representing:
Cost 66,745 64,678 330,705 202,828 38,040 2,688 4,528 710,212 - 710,212
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 July 2008 27,568 1,164 136,003 90,799 22,398 653 — 278,585 - 278,585
Charge for the period 2,515 1,154 35,449 25432 6,184 665 — 71,39 167 71,566
Transfers (2,573) — — — — — — (2,573) 2,573 —
\Written back on disposals — (545) (8,228) (6,425) (9,371) (237) — (24.806) (2,740) (27,546)
Exchange adjustments (988) 4y (3,876) (2,254) 3n) — - (7,448) - (7,448)
At 31 December 2009 26,522 1814 159,348 107,552 18,840 1,081 — 315,157 - 315,157
Net book value:
At 31 December 2009 40,223 62,864 171,357 95,276 19,200 1,607 4528 395,055 - 395,055
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14

15

FIXED ASSETS (continuED)
The Group (continued)
(i) Analysis of carrying values of fixed assets:

2010 2009
Leasehold Leasehold
Buildings land Buildings land
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Long leases
— outside Hong Kong 42,027 67,462 40,223 62,864

(ii) At 31 December 2010, certain land and buildings which are situated in Singapore with carrying values of HK$103,815,000
(2009: HK$93,629,000) were pledged as security to bank for a bank loan and banking facilities granted to the Group

(note 24).

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 167,654 167,654
Capital contribution in respect of equity-settled share-based payments 9,108 5,336
Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,423,144 1,109,953
1,599,906 1,282,943
Less: Impairment losses (405,353) (405,353)
1,194,553 877,590
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000

Included in
— Non-current 1,192,993 876,030
— Current 1,560 1,560
1,194,553 877,590

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 38(a) to the financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and are not expected to be recovered within one year, except for
an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$1,560,000 (2009: HK$1,560,000) which is expected to be settled within one year and

included under current assets.

The carrying amount of these amounts due from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.
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for the year ended 31 December 2010

16 AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES/LOAN TO A JOINT
VENTURE PARTNER
(@) Amounts due from jointly controlled entities
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities of HK$1,273,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$1,683,000) are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. The carrying amounts of these amounts due from jointly
controlled entities approximate their fair values.

(b) Loan to a joint venture partner
At 31 December 2009, loan to a joint venture partner of HK$5,357,000 was unsecured, interest-free and was not
expected to be recovered within one year. The carrying amount of the loan to a joint venture partner approximated its fair
value.

(c)  Details of the jointly controlled entities of the Group are set out in note 38(b) to the financial statements.

(d)  Summary financial information on jointly controlled entities — Group's effective interest:

2010

HK$'000

Non-current assets 365,992
Current assets 152,180
Non-current liabilities (70,257)
Current liabilities (164,948)
Net assets 282,967
Income 583,657
Expenses (517,190)
Total comprehensive income for the year 66,467

2009
Continuing Discontinued

operations operation Total

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000

Non-current assets 339,980 — 339,980
Current assets 128,152 — 128,152
Non-current liabilities (81,487) — (81,487)
Current liabilities (153,809) — (153,809)
Net assets 232,836 — 232,836
Income 702,911 13,984 716,895
Expenses (660,624) (12,786) (673,410)
Total comprehensive income for the period 42,287 1,198 43,485

_______
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES AND DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSET

The Group
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000

Available-for-sale equity securities:
— Listed investment in Hong Kong at fair value 41,470 —
— Listed investment in Australia at fair value 1,482 —
— Unlisted investments, at cost 203,131 1,500

246,083 1,500

Market value of listed investments 42,952 —

(a)

(b)

(9]

Listed investments
In June 2010, the Group acquired 11,000,000 shares at HK$5 per share through a public placing of Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (“Overseas Chinese”), a company listed in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group's investment in available-for-sale equity security was individually determined to
be impaired on the basis of a significant and prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. The Group recognised an
impairment loss of HK$13,727,000 to the consolidated income statement in accordance with the policy set out in note

3(n)(i).
As at 31 December 2010, the fair value of this investment amounted to HK$41,470,000 (2009: HK$Nil).

Derivative financial asset

In June 2010, the Group entered into an agreement (the “Option Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
“Counterparty”) with respect to the shares of Overseas Chinese (the “Overseas Chinese Shares”) held by the Group as
referred in note 17(a). Pursuant to the terms of the Option Agreement, one of the following options can be exercised
and once the option is exercised, the other options will expire: (a) a right held by the Group to sell the Overseas Chinese
Shares to the Counterparty at a fixed price per share at any date until 6 June 2012 (“Put Option”); (b) a right held by
the Counterparty to purchase the Overseas Chinese Shares from the Group at a fixed price per share at any date until 6
June 2012 (“Call Option”); and (c) a right held by the Counterparty to share a portion of the gain upon disposal in excess
of a fixed price per share if neither the Put Option nor Call Option have not exercised by their respective expiry dates
("Profit-sharing Option”). The Group received HK$8,250,000 from the Counterparty as the consideration for entering
into the Option Agreement. The Group recognised the Option Agreement as single derivative instrument and recorded
the transaction price of entering into the Option Agreement as a derivative financial liability. For the year ended 31
December 2010, the change in the fair value of this derivative financial instrument as at 31 December 2010 amounted
to HK$8,496,000 which was credited to the consolidated income statement and resulted in a derivative financial asset of
HK$246,000 as at 31 December 2010.

Unlisted investments

Included in the available-for-sale equity securities is an investment in an unlisted company, the carrying value in the
amounts of HK$201,631,000 which constituted more than 10% of the Group’s total assets at 31 December 2010. Details
of the unlisted investment are shown as follows:

Name of company Place of incorporation Percentage of total common units held
Legend Pictures, LLC Delaware, United States of America 3.33%
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18

19

108

TRADEMARKS

Trademarks represented the perpetual license for the use of the brand name “Golden Harvest” which takes the form of sign,
symbol, name, logo, design or any combination thereof.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group’s trademarks have an indefinite useful life due to the following reasons:

(i) the trademarks, which were acquired by the Group in 2001, have been in use for a considerable number of years and will
continue to be used for the long term; and

(i) the Group has incurred and intends to continue to incur significant advertising and promotion expenses, which are
charged to income statement when incurred, to maintain and increase the market value of its trademarks.

Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Ltd. (“Vigers Appraisal”), a firm of independent professional qualified valuers, has confirmed,
in their valuation of the Group’s trademarks, that the market value of the trademarks exceeded their carrying value as at
31 December 2010. Accordingly, no impairment loss was recorded at 31 December 2010.

GOODWILL
The Group
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
Cost and carrying amount
At 1 January 2010/1 July 2008 28,538 —
Additions
— Acquisition of a subsidiary and the related business (notes 26 and 34(a)) 45,120 28,538
At 31 December 73,658 28,538

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill for the cash-
generating unit and determined that such goodwill has not been impaired at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGU) identified according to country of operation and business
segment as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
Distribution and production — Mainland China 73,658 28,538

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five years and a range of pre-tax discount
rate from 8% to 14% based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital.

The assumptions used are based on management'’s past experience of the specific market, and reference to external sources of
information. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.
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20

21

INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at cost of HK$3,480,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$2,461,000) which comprised largely of goods
for resale.

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised as an expense to the consolidated income statement of the Group was
HK$30,637,000 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$38,517,000).

FILM RIGHTS

The Group
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$°000
Film rights — completed 40,821 51,355
Investment in film production 20,508 15,299
61,329 66,654
Film production in progress, at cost 28,597 9,301
89,926 75,955
Less: impairment losses (4,056) =
85,870 75,955

Film rights represents films and television drama series and self-produced programmes.

Investments in film/drama production represent funds advanced to licensed production houses for co-financing of the production
of films and/or television programmes, which are freely to be exploited by the production houses. The investments are governed
by the relevant investment agreements entered into between the Group and the production houses whereby the Group is
entitled to benefits generated from the distribution of the related films and/or television programmes. The amounts will be
recoverable by the Group from a pre-determined share of the sales proceeds of the respective co-financed films or television
programmes, resulting from the distribution to be confirmed by the relevant production houses.

Film production in progress represents films under production.
In accordance with note 3(p) of the Group’s accounting policy, the Group performed impairment tests at 31 December 2010
and 2009 by comparing the attributable carrying amounts of the film rights/self produced programmes with the recoverable

amounts.

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the film production in progress based on the present value of estimated
discounted future cash flows from the film production in progress.

The Group recognised impairment losses of HK$1,751,000 and HK$2,305,000 in respect of the investment in film production
and film production in progress for the year ended 31 December 2010 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$Nil).

The amount of film production in progress expected to be recovered after one year is HK$17,655,000 (2009: HK$8,075,000).
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22 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(a) Trade receivables

110

The Group
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
Trade receivables 33,113 37,026
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (117) (237)
32,996 36,789

(i)

(i)

Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) as of the end of reporting period:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current to 3 months 28,942 34,906
Within 4 to 6 months 3,588 1,716
Over 6 months 466 167
32,996 36,789

The Group usually grants credit periods ranging from one to three months. Each customer has a credit limit and
overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not
considered significant. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of the trade receivables
approximate their fair values. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 30(a) to the financial
statements.

Impairment losses of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2010/1 July 2008 237 —
Impairment loss recognised — 237
Uncollectible amounts written off (120) —
At 31 December 2010 117 237
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22 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (conminuep)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)

(ii) Impairment losses of trade receivables (continued)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
The Group
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 20,204 27,461
Less than one month past due 5,614 4,953
Past due over one month 7,178 4,375
12,792 9,328
32,996 36,789
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there were no
recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
(iii) At 31 December 2009, trade receivables of the Group included the amounts of HK$965,000 due from related

companies which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable.

(b) Al of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments are expected to be recoverable within one year.

23 DEPOSITS AND CASH
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Deposits at banks 188,487 274,877 — —
Cash at bank and in hand 298,666 273,389 258 278
487,153 548,266 258 278
Less: Pledged deposits

— for a banking facility — (5,425) — —
— for bank loans (12,842) (10,311) — —
— as guarantees to landlords (16,634) (14,727) — —

Deposits and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position 457,677 517,803 258 278

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Deposits at banks are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate their fair

values.

Deposits and cash as at 31 December 2010 include HK$85,412,000 (2009: HK$33,486,000) equivalent placed with banks in
Mainland China, the remittance of which are subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated

by the government of People’s Republic of China.
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24 BANK LOANS

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

At 31 December 2010, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
Within 1 year or on demand 21,363 24,201
After 1 year but within 2 years 52,672 17,357
After 2 years but within 5 years 19,740 45,375
After 5 years 9,988 —
82,400 62,732
103,763 86,933

All of the non-current interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

All bank loans bear interest at floating interest rates which approximate to market rates of interest.
At 31 December 2010, the bank loans were secured by:

(i) the property, plant and equipment of a jointly controlled entity (note 14);

(i) the time deposits of jointly controlled entities of HK$11,079,000 (2009: HK$10,311,000); and

(i) the time deposits of subsidiaries of HK$ 1,763,000 (2009: HK$Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group repaid secured bank loan of HK$5,130,000 which was previously
secured by a time deposit of a related company of HK$5,700,000. This security was released during the year ended 31
December 2010.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s
statement of financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 30(b). As at 31 December 2010, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2009:
None).

The bank loans of the Group were denominated in the following original currencies:

The Group
2010 2009
‘000 ‘000
Singapore dollars 11,250 14,250
New Taiwan dollars 10,713 14,284
Renminbi 28,400 4,500
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25

26

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUED CHARGES AND DEFERRED REVENUE
(@) Trade payables

The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of reporting period:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current to 3 months 69,462 83,832
Within 4 to 6 months 6,606 8,735
Within 7 to 12 months 279 821
Over 1 year 9,917 4,110
86,264 97,498

(b) Other payables and accrued charges included the remaining purchase consideration of HK$45,120,000 in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary and the related business (note 34(a)).

All of the other payables and accrued charges (including amounts due to related parties) are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand.

(c) Al of the deferred revenue are expected to be settled within one year.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

Convertible notes issued/to be issued in respect of acquisition of transferred assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary (the “Acquired Business")

On 30 November 2009, the Company issued a zero coupon convertible note (“CN 2009"”) with a principal amount of
HK$9,024,000 (equivalent to RMB8,000,000) to Orange Sky Entertainment Group (International) Holding Company Limited
("OSEG") as part of the consideration for the Acquired Business. The CN 2009 is convertible at the option of the note holder into
ordinary shares of the Company on or before 24 December 2015 at a price of HK$0.338 per share. If the conversion right is not
exercised by the note holder, the CN 2009 not converted will be redeemed on 31 December 2015 at the principal amount of the
note. The CN 2009 is unsecured.

OSEG is a substantial shareholder of the Company. The acquisition constitutes a connected transaction as defined in the Listing
Rules. Further details of the issue of the convertible note are set out in the circular of the Company dated 25 June 2009.

The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible note was estimated at the issuance date using the Group's prevailing
borrowing rate and an equivalent market interest rate for a similar note without a conversion option, and has been ascertained
by Vigers Appraisal. The residual amount was assigned as the equity component and included in shareholders’ equity.
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26

27

28

114

CONVERTIBLE NOTE (conminuep)

Convertible notes issued/to be issued in respect of acquisition of transferred assets and

liabilities of a subsidiary (the “Acquired Business") (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the CN 2009 have been split between the liability and equity components, as

follows:
The Group and the Company
Liability Equity
component component Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
At 30 November 2009 and 31 December 2009 6,150 2,874 9,024
At 1 January 2010 6,150 2,874 9,024
Interest expense (note 7(a)) 512 — 512
At 31 December 2010 6,662 2,874 9,536

Subsequent to 31 December 2010, the Company intends to issue a second tranche convertible note up to a maximum amount of
HK$45,120,000 (equivalent to RMB40,000,000) as the Acquired Business achieved the financial target for the two years ended
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 in accordance with the relevant provisions of the sale and purchase agreement (note

34(a)).

AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

At 31 December 2009, amount due to a jointly controlled entity was unsecured, interest-free and was expected to be settled

after one year.

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Taxation in the statement of financial position represents:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
Provision for overseas taxation for the year/period 25,006 22,363
Tax paid for the year/period (15,125) (14,119)
Tax refund for the year/period 4,581 —
Balance of overseas tax provision relating to prior years/periods 20,497 9,472
Acquisition of a subsidiary — 5,387
Disposal of subsidiaries (75) —
34,884 23,103

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The Group
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$°000
Net deferred tax liability recognised on the statement of financial position 19,623 13,868
Net deferred tax asset recognised on the statement of financial position (3,095) (420)
16,528 13,448
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28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (conminueD)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

(9]

(d)

movements during the year/period are as follows:

Depreciation
allowance in Withholding
excess of Revaluation tax on
related Tax losses of leasehold  unremitted
depreciation recognised buildings earnings Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 July 2008 16,219 — 321 — (358) 16,182
Exchange adjustments (562) — — — 28 (534)
Credited to profit or loss (note 8(a)) (1,789) — — — (90) (1,879)
Disposal of a subsidiary — — (321) — — (321)
At 31 December 2009 13,868 — — — (420) 13,448
At 1 January 2010 13,868 — — — (420) 13,448
Exchange adjustments 1,105 — — — (46) 1,059
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss
(note 8(a)) 466 (2,728) — 4,184 99 2,021
At 31 December 2010 15,439 (2,728) — 4,184 (367) 16,528

Deferred tax assets not recognised

At 31 December 2010, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of accumulative tax losses of
approximately HK$588,801,000 (2009: HK$568,393,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
current tax legislation except for the balances of HK$21,250,000 (2009: HK$7,901,000) which can be only carried forward
for five years under the relevant jurisdiction.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
At 31 December 2010, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2009: HK$Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities as the Group has no
significant liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

At 31 December 2010, the Company does not have any other material deferred taxation assets and liabilities (2009:

HKS$Nil).
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(@) Share capital

116

2010 2009
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Authorised:
At 1 January 2010/1 July 2008 6,000,000,000 600,000 600,000,000 600,000
Subdivision of shares (i) — — 5,400,000,000 —
At 31 December 6,000,000,000 600,000 6,000,000,000 600,000
Ordinary shares, issued and
fully paid:
At 1 January 2010/1 July 2008 2,199,739,900 219,974 169,637,627 169,638
Conversion of convertible
notes () — — 13,636,363 13,636
Subdivision of shares (i) — — 1,649,465,910 —
Placing of shares in 2009 (i) — — 366,000,000 36,600
Placing of shares in 2010 (iv) 340,000,000 34,000 — —
Share options exercised v) 4,000,000 400 1,000,000 100
At 31 December 2,543,739,900 254,374 2,199,739,900 219,974
Notes:
(i) Conversion of convertible notes

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

In July and August 2008, the convertible notes in aggregate amounts of HK$30,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares,
creating a total of 13,636,363 new ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$2.20 per share prior to subdivision
of shares.

Subdivision of shares
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 11 November 2009, the issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each of the
Company were subdivided on the basis of every one share into ten shares of HK$0.10 each.

The Company'’s authorised share capital of HK$600,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each was
subdivided into 6,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. On the same day, the Company’s issued and fully paid share
capital of HK$183,273,990 divided into 183,273,990 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each was subdivided into 1,832,739,900 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each.

Placing of shares in 2009

On 12 November 2009, the Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement with Skyera International Limited
(“Skyera”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo, a director of the Company,
and independent third parties for placing up to a maximum of 366,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.539 per share.

On 17 November 2009, the Company issued and allotted 366,000,000 shares for net proceeds of HK$188,668,000. The difference
of HK$152,068,000 between the net proceeds of HK$188,668,000 and the par value of the shares issued of HK$36,600,000 has
been credited to the share premium account of the Company (note 29(b)(ii)).

Placing of shares in 2010
On 10 February 2010, the Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement with Skyera for a placing up to a maximum
of 340,000,000 subscription shares at a price of HK$0.97 per share.

On 23 February 2010, the Company issued and allotted 340,000,000 shares for net proceeds of HK$313,827,000. The difference
of HK$279,827,000 between the net proceeds of HK$313,827,000 for the share subscription, after deduction of relevant expenses
and the par value of the shares issued of HK$34,000,000, has been credited to the share premium account of the Company (note
29(b)(ii).
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conminueD)
(a) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(v)

Share option scheme

Equity-settled share-based transactions

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 11 November 2009, the Company terminated the old share option
scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). The Old
Share Option Scheme was initially valid and effective from 30 November 2001 and expiring on 30 October 2011. The purpose of
the Old Share Option Scheme was to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operation. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more flexible means
to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible participants of the share option
scheme include the Company’s directors, including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of the Group, and
shareholders of the Company.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective on 11 November 2009 and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding independent non-executive director who is
the grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options must be accepted within 30 days inclusive of, and from the day of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The vesting period, the exercise period and the number of shares subject to
each option are determinable by the directors. The exercise period may not exceed 10 years commencing on such date on or after
the date of grant as the directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options and ending on such date as the
directors of the Company may determine in granting the share options. Save as determined by the directors of the Company and
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant share option, there is no general requirement that a share option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange’s closing price of the Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The maximum number of shares of the Company issuable upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (if any) is an amount equivalent to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at 11 November 2009. This limit can be refreshed by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting in accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options
granted to each eligible participant under the New Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the shareholders’ meeting.

Adjustments to share options and exercise prices

As a result of the subdivision of share (note 29(a)(ii)), the number of shares issuable under the share options granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme and the exercise prices were adjusted as stated in the table below. All share options under the New Share
Option Scheme were granted subsequent to the subdivision of share.
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conminuEeD)

118

(a) Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)
Adjustments to share options and exercise prices (continued)
The movements of share options during the year and the outstanding share options held by directors of the Company and other
employees of the Group as at 31 December 2010 are shown in the following table:

(v)

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

The Old Share Option Scheme

Number Number
of share of share
options options
outstanding outstanding
Pre-adjusted  Post-adjusted asat  Granted Lapsed  Exercised asat
Name or category Date of grant exercise exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
of participant of share options price price  Exercise period 2010 theyear  theyear  theyear 2010
HKS HKS
Director
Huang Shao-Hua George 12 April 2007 393 0393 1July2007 to 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000
30 October 2011
23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 - - — 200,000
22 September 2014
Wu Kebo 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 60,000,000 — — — 60,000,000
22 September 2014
Chow Sau Fong Fiona 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 700,000 —  (700,000) — —
22 September 2014 (note)
Wu Keyan 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 700,000 — — — 700,000
22 September 2014
Li Pei Sen 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 — — — 200,000
22 September 2014
Leung Man Kit 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 - - - 200,000
22 September 2014
Masahito Tachikawa 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 200,000 — (200,000 — —
22 September 2014 (note)
Tan Boon Pin Simon 12 April 2007 393 0393 1July2007 to 2,000,000 — — = 2,000,000
30 October 2011
23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 1,200,000 - — — 1,200,000
22 September 2014
Chang Tat Joel 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 12,000,000 - - — 12,000,000
22 September 2014
Chief Executive Officer
Wu King Shiu Kelvin 23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 21,000,000 — — — 21,000,000
22 September 2014
Other participants
In aggregate 12 April 2007 393 0393 1July2007 to 2,200,000 = —(2,200,000) -
30 October 2011
23 September 2009 453 0453 23 September 2009 to 2,850,000 - (1,800,000) 1,050,000
22 September 2014
104,450,000 — (900,000) (4,000,000 99,550,000
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conrinuep)

(a) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(v)

Share option scheme (continued)
Adjustments to share options and exercise prices (continued)
The New Share Option Scheme

Number of Number of
share options share options
outstanding outstanding
asat Lapsed Exercised asat
Name or category  Date of grant 1 January during during 31 December
of participant of share options Exercise price  Exercise period 2010 the year the year 2010
HK$
Other participants
In aggregate 13 November 2009 0.73 13 November 2009 to 1,200,000 (500,000) — 700,000
12 November 2014 (note)
1,200,000 (500,000) — 700,000

Note: The share options lapsed due to the resignation of the directors or employees.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Company’s directors, their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes model. The contractual
life of the share option is used as an input into this model. The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Date of grant

23 September 2009
(to directors and
chief executive

13 November 2009
(to other

23 September 2009
(to other

officer) participants) participants)
Fair value at measurement date * HK$0.123 HK$0.116 HK$0.16
Share price * HK$0.453 HK$0.453 HK$0.73
Exercise price * HK$0.453 HK$0.453 HK$0.73
Expected volatility 50% 50% 42%
Option life 5 years 5 years 5 years
Expected life 2.3 years 2.0 years 2.0 years
Expected dividends 2.8% 2.8% 2.8%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 1.766% 1.766% 1.612%

* adjusted for subdivision of shares

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility (calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The share options granted to Mr. Wu Kebo and Mr. Chang Tat Joel, directors, and Mr. Wu King Shiu Kelvin, Chief Executive
Officer, were under a service condition of three years. This condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

At the end of reporting period, the Company had 100,250,000 share options outstanding under the Old Share Option Scheme
and the New Share Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 100,250,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately 4% of
the Company'’s shares in issue as at the end of reporting period, and additional share capital of HK$10,025,000 and share premium
account of HK$34,083,470 (before issue expenses).
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conrinuep)

(b) Reserves
(i) The Group

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year/period ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(ii) The Company

Equity
component
Share Capital of
Share option redemption Contributed convertible ~ Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus notes profits Total
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1July 2008 179,062 1,548 6,422 271,644 242 39,096 498,014
Loss for the period — — — — — (2,850) (2,850)
Equity-settled share-based
transactions — 1,868 — — — — 1,868
Reserve realised upon
— exercise of share options 409 (116) — — — — 293
— lapse of share options — (826) — — — 826 —
— conversion of convertible
notes 17,745 = = = (242) = 17,503
Issuance of convertible note 26 - — — — 2,874 — 2,874
Placing of shares 29(a)(iii) 152,068 — — — — — 152,068
Dividends declared or approved
during the period — — — — — (18,327) (18,327)
At 31 December 2009 349,284 2,474 6,422 271,644 2,874 18,745 651,443
At 1 January 2010 349,284 2474 6,422 271,644 2,874 18,745 651,443
Loss for the year — — — — — (2,544) (2,544)
Equity-settled share-based
transactions — 3,773 — — — — 3,773
Reserve realised upon
— exercise of share options 1,745 (465) — — — — 1,280
— lapse of share options — (267) — — — 267 —
Placing of shares 29)(v) 279,827 — — — — - 279,827
Dividends declared or approved
during the year — — — — — — —
At 31 December 2010 630,856 5515 6,422 271,644 2,874 16,468 933,779
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conrinuep)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(9]

(d)

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account is governed by Sections 40 and 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the number of unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 3(x)(ii).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents (i) the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s shares in issue,
in exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries, and the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of acquisition; and (i) the net transfer of HK$80,000,000 after setting off the accumulated
losses from the share premium account pursuant to the Company’s capital reorganisation in May 2007. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
shareholders of the Company.

Equity component of convertible notes

Equity component of convertible notes represents the value of equity component of the unexercised convertible
notes issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in
note 3(u).

Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve represents an amount transferred from retained profits in accordance with statutory
requirements and the articles of association of an associate incorporated in Taiwan. The surplus reserve may only
be applied to make up any losses and for the capitalisation by the way of fully paid bonus issue of the shares of the
associate in Taiwan.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Company’s subsidiary established in the PRC is required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profits after tax to the reserve funds. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and in the subsidiary’s articles of association, the reserve funds may be used either to
offset losses, or for capitalisation by way of paid-up capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(bb).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
representing the retained profits, amounted to HK$16,468,000 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009:
HK$18,745,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account, contributed surplus and capital redemption reserve
in aggregate of HK$908,922,000 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$627,350,000), as at 31 December
2010 may be distributed to shareholders in certain circumstance prescribed by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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29 SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (conrinuep)

(e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its gearing structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the gearing structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its gearing structure calculated on the basis of external borrowings, which includes bank loans and
convertible note over total assets.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 35%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
raise new equity financing or sell assets to reduce debt. The gearing ratio at 31 December 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$°000

Bank loans 103,763 86,933
Convertible note 6,662 6,150
External borrowings 110,425 93,083
Total assets 1,877,854 1,331,585
Gearing ratio 5.9% 7.0%

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency, interest rate and equity price risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are limited by the Group'’s financial management policies and practices described below.

122

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The Group has established credit control
policies of which credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures for debts recovery are in place to minimise
the credit risk. In addition, management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment allowances are made for irrecoverable amounts. With such policies in place, the Group has
been able to maintain its bad debts at minimal level.

The Group's trade receivable relate to a large number of diversified customers, the concentration of credit risk is not
significant.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (conmivuep)
(b) Liquidity risk
The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay. In addition, as amount due to a jointly controlled entity,
deferred revenue and deposits received do not have fixed repayment terms, the carrying amounts have not been included

in the table.
The Group
As at 31 December 2010
Total More than
contractual More than 2 years
Carrying undiscounted  Within 1year 1yearbutless but less than More than
amount cash flow or on demand than 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Trade payables 86,264 86,264 86,264 — — —
Other payables and
accrued charges 148,627 148,627 148,627 — — —
Bank loans 103,763 116,315 22,124 54,020 23,610 16,561
Convertible note 6,662 9,024 — — 9,024 —
345,316 360,230 257,015 54,020 32,634 16,561
As at 31 December 2009
Total More than
contractual More than 2 years
Carrying undiscounted Within 1year 1 year but less but less than More than
amount cash flow  or on demand than 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Trade payables 97,498 97,498 97,498 — — —
Other payables and
accrued charges 73,847 73,847 73,847 — — —
Bank loans 86,933 89,371 24,962 18,012 46,397 —
Convertible note 6,150 9,024 — — — 9,024
264,428 269,740 196,307 18,012 46,397 9,024
The Company

Except for the convertible note with details included in the table above, the earliest settlement dates of the Company’s
financial liabilities at the end of reporting period are all within one year or on demand and the contractual amounts of the
financial liabilities are all equal to their carrying amounts.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (conrinuep)

(9]

Currency risk

The Group has foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Group. Exchange differences arising on settling or translating these foreign currency monetary
items at rates different from those at dates of transactions giving rise to these monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group enters into transactions denominated in currencies other than its functional currency of the Group.
Consequently, the Group is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other foreign currencies may
change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Group’s assets or liabilities denominated
in currencies other than the Hong Kong dollars. As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the Group
does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate. The currency giving rise to foreign currency
risk is primarily denominated in Renminbi and Singapore dollars. Management of the Group continuously monitors the
Group's exposure to such foreign currency risks to ensure they are at manageable levels.

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Company’s exposure at the end of reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than functional currency to which they relate.

The Group

Exposure to foreign currencies

2010 2009

Singapore Singapore
Renminbi Dollars Renminbi Dollars
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 3,000 — — —
Deposits and cash 139,131 18 — 150

Amount due to a jointly

controlled entity — — — (974)
Net exposure to currency risk 142,131 18 — (824)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits in response
to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of reporting period. Other components of equity would not be affected by changes in the foreign exchange

rates:
2010 2009
Increase/  Effect on profit Increase/ Effect on profit
(decrease) after tax and (decrease) after tax and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange rates earnings exchange rates earnings
HK$°000 HK$'000
Renminbi 5% 8,350 5% =
(5)% (8,350) (5)% —
Singapore Dollars 5% 5 5% (227)
(5)% (5) (5% 227
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(9]

(d)

Currency risk (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The
stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over
the period until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

Currency risk as defined by HKFRS 7 arises on financial instruments being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency and being of a monetary nature. Differences resulting from the translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities into the Group’s presentation currency are
therefore not taken into consideration for the purpose of the sensitivity analysis for currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily to the Group’s short and long-term loans. Borrowings at floating
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The Group manages its interest rate risk exposures in accordance with defined policies through regular review with a focus
on reducing the Group's overall cost of funding as well as having regard to the floating/fixed rate mix appropriate to its
current business portfolio.

In line with the Group'’s prevailing strategy, the Group has entered into an interest rate swap to hedge 50% of the term
loan from floating to fixed rate. As at 31 December 2010, the notional amount of the interest rate swap SGD5.6 million
(2009: SGD7.5 million) (undertaken by a jointly controlled entity attributable to the Group) where the Group pays fixed
rate interest payments at 2.2% per annum and receives interests at floating rate related to 3-month SGD Swap Offered
Rate.

0] Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of reporting period:

2010 2009
Effective rate Effective rate
% HK$’000 % HK$°000
Variable rate borrowings:
Bank loans (note 24) 2.1-6.5 103,763 2.2-53 86,933

(i) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and total equity by approximately
HK$838,000 (2009: HK$716,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 1%
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual end of reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.
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(e)

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
securities (see note 17). Other than unquoted securities held for strategic purposes, all of these investments are listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the Australian Securities Exchange.
Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their longer term growth potential
and are monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at least
bi-annually against performance of similar listed entities, based on the limited information available to the Group, together
with an assessment of their relevance to the Group's long term strategic plans.

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease) of 20% in the relevant stock market index (for
listed investments), with all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease the group’s other components of
consolidated equity by approximately HK$8,590,000 (2009: HK$Nil).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s other components of equity that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index or other relevant risk variables had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables, that none of the group’s available-for-sale investments would be considered impaired as a result
of the decrease in the relevant stock market index or other relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain
constant.
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Fair values

()

0]

(i)

The fair values of receivables, bank balances and other current assets, payables and accrued charges and current
borrowings are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these assets
and liabilities.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December
2009 and 2010. Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment
terms. Given these terms it is not meaningful to disclose fair values.

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table represents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end
of reporting date across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments categorised | its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
financial instruments.

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data.

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2010
Assets
Available-for-sale investments:
— Listed 42,952 — — 42,952
Derivative financial instruments:
— Options — — 246 246

During the year, there were no significant transfers between instruments in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows:

Eighteen

Year ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000

Options (note 17(b))
At 1 January — —

Proceeds from writing options (8,250)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss during the period 8,496 —
At 31 December 246 —

The remeasurement on financial derivative instrument had been included in the other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

The unlisted available-for-sale investments of HK$203,131,000 were stated at cost at 31 December 2010.
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128

COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2010 not provided for in the financial statements in respect of the

acquisition of fixed assets are as follows:

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$000
Contracted for:

Mainland China 112,403 5,038
Taiwan 10,522 14,966
122,925 20,004

Authorised but not contracted for:
Hong Kong — 1,262
Mainland China 553,749 454,318
Taiwan 22,593 —
Singapore 27,000 —
603,342 455,580
726,267 475,584

(b) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2010 in relation to acquisition of subsidiaries are as follows:

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
Contracted for — 21,480

The above excludes commitment for the transaction as set out in note 34(a).
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Operating lease commitments

(9]

0]

(i)

As lessor
At 31 December 2010, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are receivable as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 14,693 18,817
— after one year but within five years 6,774 11,653
21,467 30,470

The Group leases certain of its buildings under operating leases. The leases typically run for one to five years. None
of the leases include contingent rentals.

As lessee
At 31 December 2010, the Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
are payable as follows:

2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000

Leases on premises expiring
— within one year 187,458 150,202
— after one year but within five years 608,458 379,796
— after five years 659,141 265,287
1,455,057 795,285

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office premises and cinemas held under operating leases. The
leases typically run for one to twenty years.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases are subject to contingent rent payments, which are charged at 3% to
28% (2009: 3% to 28%) of their monthly or annual gross box office takings in excess of the base rents as set out
in the respective lease agreements. In addition, 10% of the theatre confectionary sales and advertising income are
also charged as payments under certain leases.

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2010, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity amounting to HK$314,900,000 (2009: HK$Nil) and HK$30,000,000 (2009:
HK$27,500,000) respectively. At 31 December 2010, banking facilities of HK$32,900,000 (2009: HK$Nil) and HK$67,500,000
(2009: HK$78,375,000) had been utilised by the subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity respectively.

At 31 December 2010, the directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of bank guarantees as their fair values cannot be
reliably measured and no transaction price was incurred.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of their respective businesses. Having
reviewed outstanding claims and taking into account legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that even if the claims
are found to be valid, there will be no material adverse effect on the financial position of the Group.
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

130

Eighteen

Year ended months ended

31 December 31 December

Note 2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

Office rental paid (i) 1,798 —

Service fee income from jointly controlled entity (ii) 603 1,249

Consultancy fee income from jointly controlled entities (iii) 1,446 1,280

Advertising agency fee paid to jointly controlled entity (iv) 264 467

Promotion expenses v) 974 —
Notes:

@)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

This represents office rental expenses for two office areas paid to a related company, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Kebo, a director
and a substantial shareholder of the Group. The office rental was charged at a rate of RMB2,147 per day for the period from January 2010
to June 2010 for one rental area. From July 2010 to June 2011, the office rental is charged at a rate of RMB6,384 per day in aggregate for
two rental areas.

This represents service fee for ticketing system maintenance and enhancement received from a jointly controlled entity of the Group. The
fees were charged on normal commercial terms.

The consultancy fee was received from two jointly controlled entities of the Group charged on normal commercial terms.
The advertising agency fee and the promotion expenses were charged on normal commercial terms.

This represents promotion expenses paid to a subsidiary of OSEG, which is a substantial shareholder of the Group. The promotion expenses
were charged on normal commercial terms.

In addition, a subsidiary of OSEG, which is a substantial shareholder of the Group, waived the promotion expenses of HK$757,000 (eighteen
months ended 31 December 2009: HK$Nil) during the year.

The transaction amounted to HK$974,000 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$Nil) shown in note (v) above with
a related company (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: Nil) constituted connected transaction as defined in the Listing

Rules.

The connected transaction was either properly approved by the independent shareholders or constituted the de minims

transaction as defined in the Listing Rules.

The transactions amounted to HK$ 1,798,000 (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: HK$Nil) shown in note (i) above with
a related company (eighteen months ended 31 December 2009: Nil) constituted continuing connected transactions as defined
in the Listing Rules. The continuing connected transactions were either properly approved by the independent shareholders or
constituted the de minimis transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

None of the other related party transactions set out above constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2010



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

34 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Acquisition of a subsidiary and the related businesses

On 30 October 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in 1t RIE X Z= AR AR EIIEBFR A7 (formerly known
as L FEREREBEEHIEGRAR) ("db 55248 ") and the business relating to Chinese-Language films and television
programmes, production, investment, marketing and advertising and/or distribution business from OSEG, commonly
controlled by the shareholder and a director of the Company, Mr. Wu Kebo.

The combined fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Acquired Business as at the date of acquisition and
the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value
Carrying recognised on
amount acquisition
HK$°000 HK$'000
Fixed assets 1,149 1,149
Film rights 34,337 34,337
Trade receivables 3,593 3,593
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 5,091 5,091
Amounts due from related companies 929 929
Cash and cash equivalents 3,895 3,895
Trade payables (5,291) (5,291)
Other payables and accruals (2,433) (2,433)
Amounts due to related companies (12,633) (12,633)
Taxation payable (5,387) (5,387)
Secured bank loans (5,130) (5,130)
Net assets 18,120 18,120
Goodwill (note 19)
— Addition in 2009 28,538
— Addition in 2010 45,120
73,658
91,778
Satisfied by:
Purchase consideration (note)
— Cash consideration paid 37,634
— Convertible note issued 9,024
— Convertible note to be issued 45,120
91,778
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34 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conminuep)
(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary and the related businesses (continued)
Note: The maximum aggregate consideration payable by Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion Pictures Company Limited, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser was up to RMB80 million (equivalent to approximately HK$90.2 million), which would be
partly satisfied by cash of RMB32.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$36.1 million) and by the issue of the first tranche of the
convertible note by the Company to OSEG of RMB8.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.0 million) upon completion. The
remaining up to RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately HK$45.1 million) will be satisfied by the issue of the second tranche
convertible note by the Company to OSEG in accordance with the relevant provisions of the sale and purchase agreement (the
“Deferred Consideration Arrangement”) set out below:

(i) In the event that the audited consolidated profit after taxation and non-controlling interests (but excluding any extraordinary
or exceptional or non-recurring items that is outside its ordinary course of business) of or derived from the transferred assets
("aggregate net profits”) for 2009 and 2010 are equal to or more than RMB20 million, a sum equal to RMB40 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$45.1 million) should be payable by Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion Pictures Company
Limited to OSEG by procuring the Company to issue the convertible notes within 15 business days from 30 April 2011.

(ii) In the event that the aggregate net profits for 2009 and 2010 are positive but less than RMB20 million, a sum of equal
to the aggregate net profits multiplied by a factor of two shall be payable by Orange Sky Golden Harvest Motion Pictures
Company Limited to OSEG by procuring the Company to issue the convertible notes within 15 business days from 30 April
2011. No amount shall be payable by the purchaser where the aggregate net profits are equal to or less than zero.

Analysis of the components of purchase consideration as at the date of acquisition:

At 31 December 2010, the Group assessed the contingent consideration and on the basis that the Acquired
Business recorded aggregate net profits for 2009 and 2010 in excess of RMB20 million, the second tranche of
convertible note up to maximum amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$45,120,000) is intended to be
issued subject to confirmation of aggregate profits. The Acquired Business recorded estimated aggregate profits
in 2009 and 2010 of RMB20,651,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$23,749,000) which included (a) the
distribution and licensing of film rights amounting to HK$20,194,000 and (b) launching a promotional campaign
in September 2010 (including provision of event promotion, advertising and marketing services) for a well known
nation-wide accessories and cosmetics retail network and generated HK$13,890,000 income to the Group.

The initial assessment of the total consideration paid/payable as at 31 December 2010 comprised the following
components:

HK$'000
Initial cash consideration paid during the eighteen months ended 31 December 2009 37,634
Convertible notes issued in November 2009 (note 26) 9,024
Present value of the contingent consideration:

— Convertible notes to be issued * 45,120
Total purchase consideration 91,778
* The principal terms of the convertible notes to be issued are as follows:

Aggregated principal amount Up to RMB40 million (approximately HK$45.1 million)
Interest rate per annum Nil

Conversion price applicable HK$0.338 per share

Convertible period Date of issue to 24 December 2015

Maturity date 31 December 2015

Redemption Redeemable on the maturity date at the principal amount
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34 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conTinuep)
(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary and the related businesses (continued)
(ii)  An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of the Acquired Business is

as follows:

HK$'000
Cash consideration 36,160
Cash paid for costs directly attributable to the Acquired Business 1,474
37,634
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (3,895)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of the Acquired Business 33,739

(b) Acquisition of Meilin Group
On 12 January 2010, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in 1t RIEEFEB T AR AR and 1L R FEMEERR
T B AR AF] (collectively as “Meilin Group”), which engaged in cinema operations in Mainland China (“Meilin
Acquisition”).

The combined fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Meilin Acquisition as at the date of acquisition and
the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value

Carrying recognised on

amount acquisition

HK$°000 HK$°000

Non-current assets 18,121 27,015

Cash and cash equivalents 5,264 5,264

Current assets 5,352 5,352

Current liabilities (12,453) (12,453)

Net assets 16,284 25,178

Satisfied by:

Purchase consideration in cash 25,178
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Meilin Acquisition is as follows:

HK$'000

Cash consideration 25,178

Cash and cash equivalents acquired (5,264)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Meilin Acquisition 19,914

Following the acquisition, the Meilin Group contributed turnover and profit after taxation of HK$31,861,000 and
HK$1,550,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The effect to the Group's turnover and profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 would not have been materially

different from HK$31,861,000 and HK$ 1,550,000 respectively had the above acquisition taken place at 1 January 2010.
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134

(9]

Acquisition of Yangquan Group

In December 2010, the Group acquired the entire equity interests in [5 R M ER LA A A and Advance Hero
International Limited (collectively as “Yangquan Group”), which engaged in cinema operations in Mainland China
(“Yangquan Acquisition”).

The combined fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Yangquan Acquisition as at the date of acquisition
and the corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the acquisition were as follows:

Fair value

Carrying recognised on

amount acquisition

HK$°000 HK$'000

Non-current assets — 17,058

Cash and cash equivalents 482 482

Current liabilities (12) (12)

Net assets 470 17,528

Satisfied by:

Purchase consideration in cash 17,528
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Yangquan Acquisition is as follows:

HK$°000

Cash consideration 17,528

Cash and cash equivalents acquired (482)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Yangquan Acquisition 17,046

The Yangquan Group had not commenced operations at 1 January 2010 and for the year ended 31 December 2010.
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34 ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conminuep)
(d) Disposal of subsidiaries
On 8 December 2010, the Group entered into agreement with Orange Sky Entertainment International Holding Limited
and 1t FHERIBIBESBGR/AE] as purchasers in connection with the disposals of the Group's entire equity interests in
two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Panasia Cinema Advertising Limited and Panasia Cinemedia (Shenzhen) Company Limited.

The purchasers are controlled by the substantial shareholders of the Company. The disposals constitute connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules.

The disposals were completed on 31 December 2010. The net assets of the subsidiaries at the date of the disposal were as

follows:

HK$'000
Non-current assets 3,916
Current assets 12,521
Current liabilities (6,327)

10,110

Effect of foreign exchange (1,062)
Net assets 9,048
Total consideration satisfied by:

— Cash 20,365
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries (note 6(b)) 11,317
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

— Cash consideration received 20,600

— Cash paid for costs directly attributable to the disposals (235)

— Bank balances and cash disposed of (1,747)

18,618
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Note 30 contains information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to financial risk management. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

136

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Assessment of useful economic lives of fixed assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of fixed assets based on the periods over which the assets are expected to be
available for use. The Group reviews annually their estimated useful lives, based on factors that include asset utilisation,
internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by related
industry benchmark information. It is possible that future results of operation could be materially affected by changes in
these estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of fixed assets
would increase depreciation charges and decrease non-current assets.

Assessment of impairment of assets

The Group reviews internal and external sources of information at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. The
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount when any such indication exists. The recoverable amount of an asset, or
of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the assets. The preparation of projected future
cash flows involves the estimation of future revenue and operating costs which are based on reasonable assumptions
supported by information available to the Group. Changes in these estimates would result in additional impairment
provisions or reversal of impairment in future years.

Assessment of impairment of available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews available-for-sale securities at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required to determine whether a decline in the fair value of an investment is
significant or prolonged. In making this judgement, the Group considers a number of factors including the historical
data on market volatility, the price of the specific investment, industry and sector performance, and financial information
regarding the issuers of the investment.

Assessment of impairment of film rights

The Group reviews film rights ageing analysis at the end of each reporting period. The recoverable amount of film rights is
assessed with reference to the value-in-use calculation as at the end of reporting period. The key assumptions include the
discount rate, budgeted gross margin and estimated turnover based on past practices, experience and expectations in the
film distribution industry. Changes in these estimates and assumptions would result in additional impairment provision or
reversal of impairment in future years.

Assessment of impairment of goodwiill

(@) Goodwill
The Group performed impairment test on goodwill on an in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 3(n)(ii). For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired has been allocated to individual cash-
generating units which are reviewed for impairment based on forecast operating performance and cash flows. The
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating units is determined based on value-in-use calculations. Cash
flow projections are prepared on the basis of reasonable assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market
conditions, and are discounted appropriately.

(b)  Contingent consideration
As disclosed in note 34(a), the Group acquired 100% equity interest in 1t 57545 during the eighteen months
ended 31 December 2009. According to the Deferred Consideration Arrangement, the purchase consideration is
payable by the Group (referred to hereinafter as “Contingent Consideration”) and the amount of each instalment
is determined with reference to the audited net profit for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2010.

HKFRS 3 requires the Contingent Consideration shall be further assessed based on the results of future events.
As at 31 December 2010, the Group re-assessed the present value of Contingent Consideration and revised the
Contingent Consideration and the related goodwill.
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36

37

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (conminueD)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi) Deferred tax assets
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at the end of each reporting period and reduces deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilised. However, there is no assurance that the Group will generate sufficient taxable income to
allow all or part of its deferred tax assets to be utilised.

(vii) Assessment of fair value of derivative financial instruments
The fair value of outstanding derivative financial instruments is based on independent valuations by Vigers Appraisal and
is cross checked against fair values obtained from major financial institutions. Judgement is required in determining such
valuation. Changes in the underlying assumptions could materially impact profit and loss or equity.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures including turnover and other revenue have been adjusted to conform to current period’s presentation
which the Directors considered more appropriate to reflect the operating results of the Group and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time during the year ended 31 December 2010.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 ® First-time adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards — Limited
exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosure for First-time Adopters

HK(IFRIC) 19 @ Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments

HKFRSs (Amendments) @ Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Revised HKAS 24 @ Related party disclosures

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14 ©) HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit assets, minimum funding requirements
and their interaction

HKFRS 9 @ Financial instruments

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 except the amendments to revised HKFRS 3 (2008), Business combinations
and amended HKAS 27 (2008), Consolidated and separate financial statements, which are effective for annual periods beginning 1 July
2010.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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(@) Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 3(c) and have been consolidated into the Group financial

statements.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Group's
incorporation/ Issued effective
Name of company operation equity capital interest Principal activities
I FRBRERTRHIE PRC Registered capital 100% Investment, production
BPRAF] (formerly known as RMB3,000,000 and distribution of
IR RS B AR e motion pictures and
=SNG acts as an
advertising agent
City Entertainment Hong Kong 300,000,000 shares 100% Theatre operation
Corporation Limited of HK$1 each
Gala Film Distribution Limited Hong Kong 49,990,000 shares 100% Distribution of
of HK$1 each and motion pictures
10,000 non-voting
deferred shares*
of HK$1 each
GH Global Distribution Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% Distribution of
motion pictures
GH Pictures (China) Limited Cayman Islands 3,545,450 shares 100% Holding of film rights
of US$0.1 each
Golden Harvest Cinemas British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Hong Kong 16,831,002 shares 100% Theatre operation
China Entertainment of HK$1 each
Properties Company Limited
(formerly known as
Golden Harvest China
Entertainment Properties
Company Limited)
Golden Harvest Entertainment British Virgin Islands 1,000 shares 100% Investment holding

International Limited

of US$1 each

ORANGE SKY GOLDEN HARVEST ENTERTAINMENT (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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38 SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (conminuep)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Group's
incorporation/ Issued effective
Name of company operation equity capital interest Principal activities
Golden Harvest Films British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% Investment holding
Distribution Holding Limited
Golden Harvest (Marks) Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% Holding of trademarks
Orange Sky Golden Harvest PRC Registered capital 100% Theatre operation
(China) Cinema Company RMB250,000,000
Limited (formerly known as
Golden Harvest (Shenzhen)
Cinemas Company Limited)""
Golden Harvest Treasury Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 each 100% Provision of finance to
group companies
Golden Screen Limited Hong Kong 8,750,000 shares 100% Investment holding
of HK$1 each
Golden Sky Pacific Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% Investment holding
M Cinemas Company Limited Hong Kong 3,161,000 shares 100% Theatre operation
of HK$10 each
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$1 each 100% Investment holding
Entertainment Company and 114,000,000
Limited non-voting
deferred shares”
of HK$1 each
Orange Sky Golden Harvest Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% Film Production
Motion Pictures Company
Limited
Panasia Films Limited Hong Kong 2,600 shares 100% Distribution of motion
of HK$1,000 each pictures and its related
audio visual products and
acts as an advertising agent
Shanghai Golden Harvest PRC Registered capital 90% Distribution of
Media Management US$500,000 motion pictures
Company Limited*""
Splendid Ventures Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each 100% Theatre operation

Except Golden Harvest Entertainment International Limited, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the

Company.
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(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (continued)

W For Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment Company Limited, the deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and carry the
right to receive on half of the surplus on a return of capital exceeding HK$1,000,000,000,000,000. Apart from the above, all
other deferred share carry rights to dividends for any given financial year of the respective companies when the net profit available
for distribution exceeds HK$1,000,000,000. They also carry rights to receive one half of the surplus on a return of capital of the
respective companies exceeding HK$500,000,000,000. None of the deferred shares carry any rights to vote at general meetings.

The equity interest of the entity is held by PRC nationals on behalf of the Group.

AN

The entity is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under PRC Law.

"*  Shanghai Golden Harvest Media Management Company Limited is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
under the PRC Law.

Jointly controlled entities
The following list contains the particulars of jointly controlled entities, all of which are unlisted corporate entities, which
affected the results or assets of the Group:

Form of Place of Particulars of Group's
Name of jointly business  incorporation/ issued and effective
controlled entity structure operation paid up capital interest Principal activity
Dartina Development Limited Incorporated Hong Kong 31,200,082 shares 50%  Investment holding

of HK$1 each

Golden Village Entertainment Incorporated Singapore 1,100,000 shares 50%  Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. of S$1 each

Golden Village Pictures Pte Ltd. Incorporated Singapore 2 shares 50% Distribution of

of S$1 each motion pictures

Golden Village Holding Pte Ltd. Incorporated Singapore 15,504,688 shares 50%  Investment holding
of S$1 each

Golden Village Multiplex Pte Ltd. Incorporated Singapore 8,000,000 shares 50% Theatre operation
of S$1 each

Vie Show Cinemas Co., Ltd. Incorporated Taiwan 121,200,000 shares 35.71% Theatre operation
of NTD10 each
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